
To 
Listing Department, 
BSE Limited, 
P J Towers, Dalai Street, 
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

SPRA YKING LIMITED 
(Fol'lnerly known as Spl'aykiug Agl'O Equipmellt Limited) 
Manufacturer & Exporter of Brass Forged & Turn Components 

Plot No.4009-10, G.I .D.C. Phase-III, Dared, Jamnagar- 361004 (Guj3ra t) INDIA 

CIN No.: L29219GJ200SPLC045S08 Webs ite: www.spraykingagro.com 
Email : csspraykingagro@gmail.com.sprayklngagro@yahoo.corn 

September 06, 2024 

Scrip Code: 540079 

Sub: Notice of 20th Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on Monday, September 30,2024. 

Please find attached herewith the Notice- of 20th Annual General Meeting along with the annexure, to 
be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 04.30 P.M. through Video Conference (VC) / Other 
Audio-Visual Means (OA VM). 

You are requested to kindly update above information on your record. 

Thanking You, 
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 To otherwise ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; 

 to authorize the Company Secretary and Head Compliance / other Officers of the Share Department to attend to matters 

relating to non-receipt of annual reports, notices, non-receipt of declared dividend / interest, change of address for 

correspondence etc. and to monitor action taken; monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders grievances; 

 And to do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above powers. 

 

During the year, no Complaint was received from shareholder on SCORES. The Company had no share transfers pending as on 

March 31, 2024. 

 

Ms. Hetal Prakash Vachhani, Company Secretary of the Company is Compliance Officer. 

 

6. General Body Meetings: 

 

Annual general meetings: 

 

The date, time and venue of the last Annual General Meetings are given below: 

 

AGM 
Year ended as 

on 
Venue Date Time 

Whether any Special 

Resolution passed or 

not 

19
th

  31.03.2023 

Registered Office of the 

Company at Plot No. 237/B, 

Shop No. 4, GIDC, Phase II, 

Dared Jamnagar, Gujarat-361005 

21.09.2023 11:00 A.M. Yes 

18
th
 31.03.2022 

105, 01st Floor, Barodia Tower, Plot 

No.12, D Block, Central Market, 

Prashant Vihar, New Delhi-110085  

 

AGM conducted through VC  

22.09.2022 4.00 P.M. Yes 

17
th

  31.03.2021 

Registered Office of the 

Company at Plot No. 237/B, 

Shop No. 4, GIDC, Phase II, 

Dared Jamnagar, Gujarat-361005 

 

AGM conducted through VC 

30.09.2021 5.00 P.M. Yes 

 

 

 Extraordinary General Meeting  

 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting: No Extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders was held during the 

Financial Year 2023-24 

 

 Postal Ballot:  Details of resolutions passed by postal ballot:  

 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company had sought the approval of the Shareholders by way of Postal 

Ballot through remote e-Voting process -  

 

(1) Vide Notice dated 20 March, 2023, on the following Resolution(s): 

 

Sr No. Resolutions Type of 

Resolution 

1  

Migration of Company's listed equity shares from BSE SME Segment to the Main Board of BSE 

Limited as well as on the Main Board of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE) 

 

Special 

2 Issue of Bonus Shares Ordinary 
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3 Appointment of Mr. Sandip Bhaskerrai Pandya (DIN: 06783003) as Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company. 

Special 

 

The details of e-Voting: 

 

Sr No.  Description of 

the Resolution 

Votes in favour of the 

Resolution(s) 

Votes against of the 

Resolution(s) 

Invalid 

No. of votes 

cast 

% of total 

valid votes 

cast 

No. of votes 

cast 

% of total 

valid votes 

cast 

1  

Migration of 

Company's listed 

equity shares from 

BSE SME 

Segment to the 

Main Board of 

BSE Limited as 

well as on the 

Main Board of 

National Stock 

Exchange of India 

Ltd (NSE) 

 

2,820,000 100 

 
0 0 Nil  

2 Issue of Bonus 

Shares 

2,820,000 100 

 
0 0 Nil  

3 Appointment of 

Mr. Sandip 

Bhaskerrai 

Pandya (DIN: 

06783003) as 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director of the 

Company. 

2,820,000 100 

 
0 0 Nil  

 

The above mentioned resolutions were passed with the requisite majority on 21
st
 April 2023 (being the last date 

of remote e-Voting), and the results of which were announced on 22
nd

 April 2023. 
 

(2) vide Notice dated 17 November, 2023, on the following Resolution(s): 

 

Sr No. Resolutions Type of 

Resolution 

1 Application For Listing of Equity Share Capital of Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited 

on NSE Emerge of National Stock exchange 

Special 

2 Appointment Of Mr. Hitesh Dudhagara as a Managing Director of narmadesh Brass 

Industries Limited 

Special 

3  

To Approve the Change of Name of The Company 

 

Special 
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The details of e-Voting: 

 

Sr No.  Description of 

the Resolution 

Votes in favour of the 

Resolution(s) 

Votes against of the 

Resolution(s) 

Invalid 

No. of votes 

cast 

% of total 

valid votes 

cast 

No. of votes 

cast 

% of total 

valid votes 

cast 

1 Application For 

Listing of Equity 

Share Capital of 

Narmadesh Brass 

Industries 

Limited on NSE 

Emerge of 

National Stock 

exchange 

4,550,548 100 0 0 NIL 

2 Appointment Of 

Mr. Hitesh 

Dudhagara as a 

Managing 

Director of 

narmadesh Brass 

Industries 

Limited 

2,697,764 100 0 0 NIL 

3  

To Approve the 

Change of Name 

of The Company 

 

4,650,547 100 0 0 NIL 

 

The above mentioned resolutions were passed with the requisite majority on 21
st
 Dec 2023 (being the last date 

of remote e-Voting), and the results of which were announced on 22
nd

 Dec 2023. 
 

(3) Vide Notice dated 26
th

 February, 2024 and addendum to the notice Dated 22
nd

 March 2024, on the following 

Resolution(s): 

 

Sr No. Resolutions Type of 

Resolution 

1 Approval for sub-division/stock split of equity shares of the Company Ordinary 

2 Approval for alteration of the Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association Ordinary 

3 Approval for authorisation to NARMADESH BRASS INDUSTRIES LIMITED (Subisiary 

Company) for an Initial Public Issue 

Special 

 

The details of e-Voting: 

 

Sr No.  Description of 

the Resolution 

Votes in favour of the 

Resolution(s) 

Votes against of the 

Resolution(s) 

Invalid 

No. of votes 

cast 

% of total 

valid votes 

cast 

No. of votes 

cast 

% of total 

valid votes 

cast 

1 Approval for 

sub-

division/stock 

5,355,764 100 0 0 NIL 
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split of equity 

shares of the 

Company 

2 Approval for 

alteration of the 

Capital Clause of 

the Memorandum 

of Association 

5,355,764 

 
100 0 0 NIL 

3 Approval for 

authorisation to 

NARMADESH 

BRASS 

INDUSTRIES 

LIMITED 

(Subisiary 

Company) for an 

Initial Public Issue 

3,827,942 100 0 0 NIL 

 

The above mentioned resolutions were passed with the requisite majority on 29
th

 March 2024 (being the last 

date of remote e-Voting), and the results of which were announced on 01
st
 April 2024. 

 

 Person who conducted the aforesaid postal ballot exercise:  

 

The Board of Directors had appointed M. Rupareliya & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS 51422, CP 

18634), as the Scrutiniser to conduct the Postal Ballot only through the remote e-Voting process and for scrutinising 

the votes cast therein, in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

 Procedure for Postal Ballot:  

 

In compliance with the provisions of Sections 108 and Section 110 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read 

with the Rules framed thereunder and the General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated 8th April 2020, 17/2020 dated 13th 

April 2020, 10/2021 dated 23rd June 2021, 03/2022 dated 5th May 2022, 11/2022 dated 28th December 2022, 

09/2023 dated 25th September 2023 and other relevant circulars and notifications issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the Company provided only remote e-Voting facility to its Equity Shareholders to enable them to cast their 

votes electronically. The facility for voting through ballot paper is also available and the members who have not cast 

their vote by remote e-voting may exercise their right through ballot paper. 

 

The Company engaged the services of NSDL for facilitating remote e-Voting to enable the Members to cast their 

votes electronically. 

 

The Company sent the Postal Ballot Notice in electronic form only to those Equity Shareholders whose names 

appeared in the Register of Members/List of Beneficial Owners as received from NSDL and CDSL and whose e-mail 

addresses were available with the Company/Depositories/the Depository Participants/the Company‘s Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent as on the cut-off date. 

 

Voting rights were reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the names of the Members as on the cut-

off date. Members who desired to exercise their votes by electronic mode were requested to vote before close of 

business hours on the last date of e-Voting. 
 

The Scrutiniser, after the completion of scrutiny, submitted his report and the consolidated results of the Postal Ballot 

through remote e-Voting were announced by the Company Secretary. The results are displayed on the website of the 

Company, www.sprayking.com besides being communicated to the stock exchanges, depository and Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent.  

 

The resolutions are deemed to have been passed on the last date specified for receipt of votes through remote e-
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Voting process. 
 

7. Means of Communication: 

 

The Quarterly / Annual financial results sent to the Stock Exchanges and published in the Financial Express, Economic times 

(English) and The Financial Express (Gujarati) in accordance with the Listing Regulations. The Quarterly / Annual results are 

also uploaded on the website of the Company www.sprayking.com. 

 

8. General shareholder information: 

 

AGM – Date and Time Thursday, September 21, 2023 at 11.00 A.M.,  

Financial Year: 1
st
 April 2023 to 31

st
March 2024 

Book Closure Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 to Thursday, September 21, 2023. 

ISIN: INE537U01029 

Listing of Equity Shares on 

stock exchanges: 

BSE Limited, P. J. Towers, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001 

Listing fees  payment 

status: 

The Company has paid the listing fees, to the Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2023-24 

Stock code: 540079 

Share Transfer System: The Company‘s shares are compulsorily traded in Demat mode on the BSE Limited. The transfer 

of Physical shares, if any, are processed and returned to the shareholders within a period of 15 days 

by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

Registrar & transfer agents: Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 

ADD: C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,  

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai -400083 

Tel.: 022-49186270 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in  

Market Price Data 

(Monthly): 
Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares Traded 

Apr-23 148 89 140000 

May-23 139.75 90.25 604000 

Jun-23 178.4 132 784991 

Jul-23 208.6 151 1051274 

Aug-23 209.95 190 744423 

Sep-23 205.95 175.5 273815 

Oct-23 207.5 179.15 356090 

Nov-23 243.2 194.9 553414 

Dec-23 228 203.7 702666 

Jan-24 219.95 203 444510 

Feb-24 300.2 205.75 2584911 

Mar-24 259.4 175.65 807066 
 

Distribution of 

Shareholding as on 31
st
 

March, 2024: 

Shareholding of 

Nominal Value of  

₹10 

No. 
 0f 

shareholders 

% of 


 shareholde

r  

Share 

Amount 

%  

of shareholding 

Up to 5000 7686 99.28 439739 4.16 

5001 to 10000 16 0.21 129575 1.23 

10001 to
 20,000  7 0.09 115398 1.09 

20,001 to 30,000  6 0.08 156915 1.48 

30,001 to 40,000  5 0.06 18
 106 1.76 

40,001 to 50,001 - -  - - 

50,001 to 1,00,000  4 0.05 280975 2.66 

1,00,001 & above 18 0.23 9259238 87.62 
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Total 7742 100% 10567946 100% 
 

Dematerialization of Shares 

and Liquidity: 
Particulars No. of Shares Percentage 

Demat Segment 

NSDL 4182685 39.58 

CDSL 6385261 60.42 

Total 10567946 100.00% 
 

Shareholding Pattern as 

March 31, 2024: 
Particulars No. of shares held % 

Promoters   

Individual 38,47,946 36.41 

Body Corporate(s) 0 0 

Non Promoters 

Individual / HUF 4820962 45.62 

Body Corporate(s) 1400897 13.26 

Bank / Financial Institutions 0 0 

NRIs/Foreign Nationals 17744 0.17 

Other  480397 4.55 

Total 10567946 100.00% 
 

Details of shares lying in 

the suspense account: 
Sr. 

No. 
Particulars 

No. of 

Shareholders 

No. of 

Shares 

1. Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at 

the beginning of the year 

Nil Nil 

2. Number of shareholders who approached the 

Company for transfer of shares from the suspense 

account during the year 

Nil Nil 

3. Number of shareholders to whom shares were 

transferred from the suspense account during the 

year 

Nil Nil 

4. Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at 

the end of the year 

Nil Nil 

 

Address for 

correspondence: 
SPRAYKING LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited) 

Plot No. 4009 & 4010, GIDC, Phase III, Dared Jamnagar, Gujarat, 361004 

Tel No. +91-9328377772, 9328427772 

Email: csspraykingagro@gmail.com   

Web: www.sprayking.co.in  

 

9. Chart of Matrix Core Skill of Directors. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Skill area Pragjibhai 

Meghjibhai 

Patel 

Hitesh 

Pragajibhai 

Dudhagara 

Ronak 

Hitesh 

Dudhagara 

Dhruvik 

Bhanderi 
Jignesh 

Sanghani 

Vishal 

Pansara 

Arvind Trivedi 

1. Strategy Planning 
  

- - 
 

- 
 

2. Risk Management 
 

- 
  

- 
 

- 

3. Governance and 

Compliance  
- 

  
- 

  

4. Expertise/Experience in 

Finance & Accounts 

/Audit 

      
- 

5. Member and stakeholder 

engagement  
- - 

 
- - 

 

6. Industry Knowledge & 
   

- 
  

- 
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Experience 

7. Policy Development - 
 

- 
  

- 
 

8. Corporate Leadership 
 

- 
 

- - 
 

- 

9. Legal & Regulatory - 
      

10. Human Resource 

Management 
- 

 
- - 

 
- - 

 

10. Disclosures: 

 

i. The Company did not have any material significant related party transactions having a potential conflict with the interest 

of the Company at large. Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the audited financial statements. 

ii. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS). 

iii. There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to the capital markets, resulting in 

disciplinary action against the Company by the Stock Exchanges or Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or 

any other statutory authority, during the last three years. 

iv. The Company has a vigil mechanism for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 

fraud or violation of our code of conduct and confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 

Committee 

v. The Company has a formal system of internal control testing which examines both the design effectiveness and 

operational effectiveness to ensure reliability of financial and operational information and all statutory / regulatory 

complianes. 

vi. Policy for determining ‗material‘ subsidiaries and Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on 

www.sprayking.co.in. 
vii. The Company has complied with mandatory requirements specified from Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 

sub –regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

viii. The CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

certifying that the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fair 

view of the Company‘s affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report. 

ix. Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a certificate from M Rupareliya 

& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, certifying the compliance by the Company with the provisions of the 

Corporate Governance of the Listing Regulations forms part of this Report. 

x. Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 

debarred or disqualified as Directors of Companies by SEBI or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other 

Authority is issued by M/s M Rupareliya & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, annexed to this report and 

forms part of this Report. 

 

 

Declaration as required under Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed 

compliance with the ―Sprayking - Code Of Conduct‖ for Directors and Senior Management Personnel. 

 

For, Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Mr. Hitesh Dudhagara 

(Chairman & Managing Director)  

DIN: 00414604 

 

Date: 05
th

 September, 2024 

Place: Jamnagar 
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                                                       ANNEXURE- IV 

 

CERTIFICATION BY CFO UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF THE LISTING REGULATION 

 

 

To 

The Board of Directors, 

M/s., Sprayking  Limited 

(Formerly Known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)  

CIN: L29219GJ2005PLC045508 

 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited. 

for the year ended March 31, 2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:  

 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 

 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in compliance 

with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company‘s Code of Conduct. 

 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 

we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 

reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to 

take for rectifying these deficiencies.  

 

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 

(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and the same have been disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements; and 

 

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 

the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company‘s internal control system 

over financial reporting. 

 

For, Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mr. Hiren Jamanbhai Patoriya 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

  

Date: 05
th

 September, 2024 

Place: Jamnagar 
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ANNEXURE- V 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para E of the SEBI] 

 (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

 

 

To, 

The Members  

M/s., Sprayking  Limited 

(Formerly Known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)  

CIN: L29219GJ2005PLC045508 

 

I have examined all the relevant records of Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited for the purpose of certifying 

compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. I have obtained all the information 

and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, mentioned hereinabove and there is adequate compliance management system for the 

purpose of other applicable laws mentioned as sector specific laws hereinabove. I further report my observation as 

follows that: 

 

 

Sr No. 

 

 

 

(a) 

Compliance requirement 

(Regulations/circulars/ 

guidelines including specific 

clause) 

(b) 

Regulations/cir

cular No. 

 

 

(c) 

Deviations 

 

 

 

(d) 

Action Taken by 

 

 

(e) 

Type of Action 

 

 

(f) 

1. Compliance requirements 

pertaining to appointment of 

Independent director 

Regulation 17(1) Independent 

Director not 

Appointed 

BSE - Stock 

Exchange 

Fine Imposed 

2. Late Submission of the financial 

results within the period 

prescribed 

Regulation 33 Submission not 

made within 

prescribed time 

BSE - Stock 

Exchange 

Fine Imposed 

 

 

 

Details of Violation 

 

 

 

 

(g) 

Fine Amount 

 

 

 

(h) 

Observations/Remarks of the 

Practicing Company Secretary  

(i) 

Management 

Response 

 

 

 

(j) 

Remarks 

 

 

 

 

(k) 

Non-compliance with the 

requirements pertaining to 

the composition of the Board 

including failure to appoint 

Independent Director 

Rs. 536900/- 

(455000+ 18% 

GST) 

 

Rs. 312700/- 

(26500 + 18% 

GST) 

 

The company failed to appoint 

Independent Directors as per 

requirement. However, 

appointment of Independent 

Directors was made as per 

requirement and hence complied as 

on 31
st
 March, 2024 

The company 

has paid 

penalty of Rs 8, 

49,600 to Stock 

Exchange 

within the 

specified time. 

 

Late Submission of the 

financial results within the 

period prescribed 

Rs. 47200 (47000 

+ 18% GST) 

The company failed to submit 

financials within time prescribed. 

The company 

has paid 

penalty of Rs 

47,200 to Stock 
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Exchange 

within the 

specified time. 

 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 

was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 

the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the 

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.  

 

 

 

 For, M Rupareliya & Associates 

 Practicing Company Secretaries 

  

 Sd/- 

  

 CS Mayuri Rupareliya 

 ACS-A51422 

 COP-18634 

September 05
th

 , 2024 UDIN: A051422F001154183 

Place: Rajkot Peer Review: 2017/2022 
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ANNEXURE VI 

 

Form No. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-

section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm‟s length transactions under third proviso 

thereto: 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm‟s length basis: Not Applicable 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm‟s length basis: 

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship 

Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

 The Company and Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited have entered into Transaction for supply and purchase of brass Forging 

Parts, brass compression fitting etc. 

Apart from above, the Company and Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited enter into other allied transactions in the ordinary 

course of business. 

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: as per Agreement.  

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 

 (i) Aggregate value of purchase by the Company from Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited for FY 2023-24 – Rs. 450.62 (in 

lakhs); 

 (ii) Aggregate value of sales by the Company to Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited for FY 2023-24 – ` Rs. 386.56 (in lakhs); 

and 

 (iii) aggregate value of other allied transactions between the Company and Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited  for FY 2023-24 

– NA. 

e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 23.08.2023 (Board Approval)  

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 
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ANNEXURE VII 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10) (i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 

The Members  

M/s., Sprayking  Limited 

(Formerly Known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)  

CIN: L29219GJ2005PLC045508 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Sprayking  Limited (Formerly Known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited) having CIN: 

L29219GJ2005PLC045508 hereinafter referred to as the (―Company‖) produced before me by the Company for 

the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 

clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.  

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director DIN Original Date of appointment in the 

Company 

1 PRAGJIBHAI MEGHJIBHAI PATEL 00414510 17/02/2005 

2 HITESH PRAGAJIBHAI DUDHAGARA 00414604 17/02/2005 

3 RONAK HITESH DUDHAGARA 05238631 27/02/2016 

4 DHRUVIK MAHESHBHAI BHANDERI 10019613 19/07/2023 

5 JIGENSH RAMNIKBHAI SANGHANI 10263600 08/08/2023 

6 VISHAL PANSARA 02230565 23/08/2023 

7 MR. ARVIND BHAI MANEKLAL TRIVEDI 10292928 10/11/2023 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of / for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 

the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of / for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 

the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 For, M Rupareliya & Associates 

 Practicing Company Secretaries 

  

 Sd/- 

  

 CS Mayuri Rupareliya 

 ACS-A51422 

 COP-18634 

September 05
th

 , 2024 UDIN: A051422F001143183   
Place: Rajkot Peer Review: 2017/2022 

 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO MEMBERS OF 
SPRAYKING LIMITED  
(Formally Known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Ltd) 
 
Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sprayking Limited, which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other 
Comprehensive Income) and Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the 
period ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. (Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view inconformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit 
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 



the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

There are no Key Audit Matters Reportable as per SA 701 issued by ICAI. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available to 
us after the date of our auditor’s report. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is 
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 



and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these  financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements, or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 



However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

  
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the  financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
  
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 
A”, a statement on the matter specified in the paragraph 3 and  4 of the Order. 

 
2. As required under provisions of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report that: 

 
a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief where necessary for the purposes of our audit; 



b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 
 

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes of Equity dealt with this 
report are in agreement with the books of account; 

 
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statement comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of Act, read with relevant rule issued 

thereunder. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 

as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) 

of the Act. 

 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the company and operating effectiveness of such controls, referred to 

our separate report in “Annexure B”. 

 
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

h. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 

to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations given to us: 

 

(a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 

2024 on its financial position in its  financial statements - Refer Note  (vii) of 

Annexure – A  to the  financial statements 

 

(b) The Company did not have any long-term and derivative contracts as at March 

31, 2024. 

 



(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 

31, 2024. 

(d)  The management has; 

 

(i) represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the 

Note No. 36 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or  

 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons 

or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall: 

 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or 

on behalf of the Company or 

 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(ii) represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the 

Note No. 37 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the 

Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Company shall: 

 

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party or 

 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe  



 

that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material 

mis-statement. 

                             The company has not neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year   
                              under Section 123 of the Act. 

 

(e)  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining 

books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording 

audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to the 

Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, and 

accordingly, The Company has used accounting software ‘Tally Prime System’ 

for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 

facility and the same has been operated throughout the period for all 

transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been 

tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the 

statutory requirements for record retention.  

 

FOR B B Gusani & Associates., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

Bhargav B. Gusani  

Proprietor 

M. No. 120710 

FRN: 140785W 

UDIN: 24120710BJZWDM5570  

Date: 28/05/2024 

 
                                                                                                                 

 

  



 
ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SPRAYKING LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH 2024 

 
In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined 
by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state as 
under: 

 
(i) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
 

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant 
details of right‐of‐use assets. 
 

b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

  
c) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at 

reasonable intervals; Any material discrepancies were noticed on such verification 
and if so, the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account. 

 
d) According to the information and explanation given to us the title deeds of all the 

immovable properties. (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and 
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the 
financial statements are held in the name of the company. 

 
e) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

right‐of‐use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 
 

f) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 
 

(ii) Inventory and working capital: 
 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, inventory has been physically verified 
during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals, except stock lying with 
third parties. Confirmations of such stocks with third parties have been obtained by  



 
 
 
the Company in most of the cases. No discrepancies were noticed on verification 
between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the 
aggregate for each class of inventory.  
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, that has been sanctioned working capital 
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of 
current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company 
with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.  

 
(iii) Investments, any guarantee or security or advances or loans given: 

 
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, 
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties 
during the year, hence reporting under clauses 3(iii)(1), (3), (4), (5), and (6) of the 
Orders are not applicable for the year under report. 

  
2. In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the 

terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest; 

 

(iv) Loan to directors: 
 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any 
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given and investments made.  

 
(v) Deposits: 

 
a) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of 

sections 73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the 2013 act and the rules framed there 
under to the extent notified.  
 

 



(vi) Maintenance of Cost Records: 
 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has 
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it (and/ or services provided by it). 
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vii) Statutory Dues: 
 

a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Duty of Customs, GST, Cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of income tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess were in arrears, as 
at 31/03/24 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales 
tax, income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, GST, excise duty and cess which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute except the following.  

 
(viii) Disclosure of Undisclosed Transactions: 

 
a) There According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, 
in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.  

 
(ix) Loans or Other Borrowings: 

 
a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied 
for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised 
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 



e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries. 

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

(x) Money Raised by IPOs, FPOs: 
 

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.  

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and 
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) Fraud: 
 

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither 
come across any instance of fraud by the company or no fraud by the Company 
and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year. 

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit an and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the 
date of this report. 

c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year (and up to the date of this report), while determining 
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xii) Nidhi Company: 
 

a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Para 3 of clause 
(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

  



 
(xiii) Related Party Transactions: 

 
a) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable Ind-AS.  

 

(xiv) Internal Audit System: 
 

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business.  

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to 
the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) Non-cash Transactions: 
 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xvi) Registration under section 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934: 
 

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), 
(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined 
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.  

(xvii) Cash losses: 
 

a) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by 
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

 
 

  



 
(xviii) Resignation of statutory auditors: 

 
a) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during 

the year. 
 

(xix) Material uncertainty on meeting liabilities: 
 

a) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  
 

(xx) Compliance of CSR: 
 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not required to spent 
amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per the section 135 of 
companies’ act, 2013, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable for the year. 
 
 

FOR B B Gusani & Associates., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

Bhargav B. Gusani  

Proprietor 

M. No. 120710 

FRN: 140785W 

UDIN: 24120710BJZWDM5570 

Date:  28/05/2024                                                    



                                                                                 
 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SPRAYKING LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH 2024 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SPRAYKING LIMITED. 
('the Company') as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the internal financial control with reference to financial statement of 
SPRAYKING LIMITED. (‘The Company”) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statement of the company at and for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial 
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the ICAI. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
  



Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 
 

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and  
 



c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 
 
 
 

FOR B B Gusani & Associates., 

Chartered Accountants 

sd/- 

 

Bhargav B. Gusani  

Proprietor 

M. No. 120710 

FRN: 140785W 

UDIN: 24120710BJZWDM5570 

Date: 28/05/2024 

 



(Rs In lakhs) 

Notes
As at 

31st March 2024

As at 

31st March 2023
As at 1st April 2022

II. ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

(a) Property Plant & Equipment 2 606.32                                   54.60                                      23.86

(b) Capital work-in-progress

( C) Investment Property

(d)  Goodwill

( e) Other Intangible assets

(f)

(g) Financial Assets

i. Investments 3 610.74                                   

ii. Trade Receivables

iii. Loan

iv. Other Financial AssetsSecurity Deposits 4 17.64                                      27.13                                      13.17                                      

(h) Deferred tax Asset(Net) 12 1.15                                        2.17

(i) Other Non-Current Assets

1,234.70                               82.88                                     39.20                                     

2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 5 1,146.94                                349.92                                   19.64                                      

(b) Financial Assets

i.Investments

ii. Trade Receivables 6 282.51                                   915.01                                   935.12                                   

iii.Cash and Cash Equivelants 7 116.46                                   1.17                                        40.13

iv. Bank balance other than(iii) above

(d) Other Current Assets 8 2,696.33                                1,323.55                                135.83

4,242.24                               2,589.66                               1,130.72                               

5,476.94                           2,672.53                               1,169.92                               

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Equity

(a) Share Capital 9 1,056.79                                634.08                                   317.28                                   

(b) Other Equity 10 1,724.06                             1,851.11                             593.45                                   

2,780.85                           2,485.19                           910.73                               

2 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

i.Borrowings 11 426.73                                   12.15                                      -                                               

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 12 12.85                                      

439.58                               12.15                                 -                                      

3 Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

i.Borrowings 13 247.96                                   117.67                                   -                                               

ii.Trade payables 14

4.45                                        

1,263.41                                14.45                                      242.94                                   

(b) 15 2.69                                        

(c) Other Current Liabilities 16 711.40                                   18.86                                      1.41                                        

(d) Other Current Tax Libilities 17 66.41                                      34.74                                      12.15                                      

2,293.63                           185.72                                  259.19                               

2,733.22                               197.87                                  259.19                                  

Total Equity and Liabilities 5,514.06                           2,683.06                           1,169.92                           

Accounting Policies  & Notes on Accounts 1

As per our Report on Even date attached

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director Whole Time Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604 DIN: 00414510

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/- Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani Hiren Patoriya

UDIN:24120710BJZWDM5570 CS CFO

Particulars

SPRAYKING  LIMITED

(CIN:L29219GJ2005PLC045508)

(Reg Office : PLOT NO 237/B, SHOP NO. 4, GIDC, PHASE II, DARED JAMNAGAR  361005 )

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

(Formally Known As Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)

Biological Assets other than bearer 

plants

Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors 

other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

    For Sprayking Ltd.

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets (1+2)

Total Equity

Total Non-Current  Liabilities

Total Current  Liabilities

Total  Liabilities

Provision



(Rs In lakhs) 

Notes
For the year ended 

31 march 2024

For the year ended 

31 march 2023

I. Revenue from operations 18 3,113.80                               1,932.77                               

II. Other Income 19 30.27                                     0.48                                        

III. Total Income (I + II) 3,144.07                               1,933.25                               

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 20 2,940.55                               1,881.96                               

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-

progress and Stock-in-Trade
21 (797.01)                               (330.28)                               

Employee benefits expense 22 24.30                                     24.73                                     

Finance Costs 23 36.97                                     10.81                                     

Depreciation and amortization expense 24 44.88                                     11.08                                     

Other expenses 25 512.14                                   92.27                                     

Total expenses 2,761.83                               1,690.57                               

V. Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 382.23                                   242.68                                   

VI Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 72.56 61.11

(2) Deferred tax 14.00                                     1.02                                        

VII Profit and loss from the continuing opration 295.67                                  180.55                                  

Profit and loss from the discontinuing opration (Net of Tax )

Profit/Loss for the year 295.67                                  180.55                                  

Other Comprehensive Income

  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be     

reclassified to profit or loss

B.(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

   (ii) income tax relating to items that will be 

reclassified to profit or loss

Total of Comprehensive income

Profit/(Loss) After Other Comprehensive Income 295.67                                  180.55                                  

VIII Earnings per equity share:( Continuing operation)

(1) Basic 1.82                                    4.24                                    

(2) Diluted 1.82                                    4.24                                    

Accounting Policies  & Notes on Accounts 1

As per our Report on Even date attached

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director Whole Time Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604 DIN: 00414510

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/- Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani Hiren Patoriya

UDIN:24120710BJZWDM5570 CS CFO

    For Sprayking Ltd. 

Particulars

SPRAYKING  LIMITED

(CIN:L29219GJ2005PLC045508)

(Reg Office : PLOT NO 237/B, SHOP NO. 4, GIDC, PHASE II, DARED JAMNAGAR  361005 )

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

A.(i) Items that will not reclassified to profit or loss

(Formally Known As Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)



Amount (In Rs.) Amount (In Rs.) Amount (In Rs.) Amount (In Rs.) 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit Before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 382.23                                      242.68                                      

Adjustments for : 

               Depreciation & Amortisation Exp. 44.88                                        11.08                                        

               Dividend Income -                                                  -                                                  

               Profit on sale of machinery -                                                  -                                                  

               Income tax Written Off -                                                  -                                                  

               Bed Debt W/off -                                                  -                                                  

               Deffered Asset -                                                  -                                                  

               Interest Income (30.26)                                     (0.48)                                       

               Finance Cost 36.97                                        51.59                                        10.80                                        21.40                                        

Operating Profit before working capital changes 433.82                                     264.08                                     

Changes in Working  Capital 

               Trade  receivable  632.51                                      20.11                                        

               Inventories  (797.01)                                  (330.28)                                  

               Trade Payables  1,253.40                                  (228.50)                                  

               Other Current Liabilites 692.54                                      17.45                                        

               other assets (1,346.69)                               -                                                  

               Short term Provisions  5.56                                           46.00                                        

440.31                                      (475.22)                                  

Net Cash Flow from Operation 874.13                                      (211.14)                                  

               Tax Paid 72.56                                        61.10                                        

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 801.57                                      (272.24)                                  

B. Cash flow from investing Activities 

                Purchase of Fixed Assets (596.60)                                  (41.83)                                     

                Purchase of Investments (610.74)                                  -                                                  

               Other Loans and advances receivable  9.48                                           (1,227.77)                               

                Movement in Loan & Advances -                                                  -                                                  

                Interest Income 30.26                                        0.48                                           

                Dividend Income -                                                  -                                                  

(1,167.60)                               (1,269.12)                               

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (1,167.60)                               (1,269.12)                               

Sr. No. Particulars 
F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23 

SPRAYKING  LIMITED 

(CIN:L29219GJ2005PLC045508) 

(Reg Office : PLOT NO 237/B, SHOP NO. 4, GIDC, PHASE II, DARED JAMNAGAR  361005 ) 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(Formally Known As Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited) 



C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

                 Proceeds From Issue of shares capital -                                                  1,393.92                                  

                 Proceeds From long Term Borrowing (Net) 414.59                                      12.15                                        

                 Short Term Borrowing (Net) 130.29                                      117.67                                      

                 Interest Paid (36.97)                                     (10.80)                                     

                 Dividend paid ( Including DDT) -                                                  507.91                                      -                                                  1,512.93                                  

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 507.91                                      1,512.93                                  

D. Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents  (A+B+C) 141.88                                     (28.43)                                    

E. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 1.17                                           40.13                                        

F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 143.05                                     11.70                                       

G. Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise : 

Cash     1.12                                           0.69                                           

Bank Balance : 

Current Account 115.33                                      0.48                                           

Deposit Account 

Total 116.45                                     1.17                                          

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani

UDIN:24120710BJZWDM5570 CS

Sd/-

Hiren Patoriya

CFO

Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Whole Time Director

DIN: 00414510

    For Sprayking Ltd.

Sd/-



Note 2 FIXED ASSETS

Balance as at
1st April 2023

Additions
Disposal/ 

(Adjustment)
Balance as at

31st March 2024
Balance as at

1st April 2023

Amount Charged to 
Reserves (refer 

Note below)

Depreciation 
charge for the 

year

Deductions/ 
Adjustments

Balance as at
31st March 2024

Balance as at
31st March 2024

Balance as at
1st April 2023

a Tangible Assets

GIDC Housing Plot 11.87                       -                        -                      11.87                        -                           -                               -                          -                    -                             11.87                        11.87                    

Plant  and  Machinery 26.45                       567.88                 -                      594.33                      11.82                       -                               45.91                      -                    57.73                         536.60                     14.63                    

Vehicles 35.81                       19.25                    -                      55.06                        8.80                         -                               10.21                      -                    19.01                         36.04                        27.01                    

Computer 6.73                         3.46                      -                      10.19                        6.22                         -                               0.54                        -                    6.76                           3.44                          0.51                      

Mobile Instrument 1.49                         -                        -                      1.49                           0.91                         -                               0.34                        -                    1.25                           0.24                          0.58                      

Furniture 9.31                       9.31                           -                           0.99                          0.99                           8.32                          -                        

Electrial Fittings 11.35                     11.35                        -                           1.54                          1.54                           9.81                          -                        

 Total 82.35                     611.25                -                     693.60                     27.76                       -                              59.53                     -                   85.74                       606.32                    54.60                  

(Rs In Lakhs)

Fixed Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

3 INVESTMENTS

a. Preliminery Expenses                                     -                                     -                                           - 

b. Other Non Current Investment
     Fixed Deposit                        100.74 
   Narmada Brass Industries                        510.00 

Total                       610.74                                    -                                          - 

4 Security Deposits

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

a. Security Deposits                           17.64                           27.13                                13.17 

Total                          17.64                          27.13                                13.17 

5 Inventories

Particulars 
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

a. Raw Materials and components 36.21

(Valued at Lower of Cost or NRV as per FIFO Method)

b. Work-in-progress                           95.55                        349.92                                19.64 

(Valued At Estimated Cost)

c. Finished goods (Valued at Cost or NRV as per FIFO)                       1,015.18                                     -                                           - 

(Valued At Lower of Cost or NRV)

d. Stores and spares & Packing Materials                                     -                                     -                                           - 

(Valued at Lower of Cost or NRV as per FIFO Method)

Total                   1,146.94                       349.92                                19.64 

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

6 Trade Receivables

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Undisputed Trade Receivable - Cosidered good

Not Due                                    -                                    -                                35.21 

Less than 6 Months                        282.51                        910.63                                   8.28 

6 Months - 1 Years                                    -                             4.39                              889.30 

01-02 Years                                    -                                    -                                   2.08 

02-03 Years                                    -                                    -                                          - 

More than 3 Years                                    -                                    -                                   0.25 

Total                       282.51                       915.01                             935.12 

7 Cash and Cash Equivelants

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

a. Balances with banks

    HDFC Bank Ltd - 1613 80.08                               0.06                                 3.40                                        

    HDFC Bank Ltd- 9170 0.29                                 0.29                                 0.29                                        

    Central Bank Of India -                                        -                                        1.11                                        

    HDFC O/d A/c -                                        -                                        33.78                                     

    IDBI Bank -                                        -                                        -                                              

   HDFC Dollar Account 34.84                               -                                        -                                              

    The Navanagar Bank 0.13                                 0.13                                 0.13                                        

-                                        -                                        -                                              

b. Cash on hand 1.12                                 0.69                                 1.42                                        

Total                       116.46                            1.17                               40.13 

8 Other Current Assets

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

a. Balance with Government Authorities                        407.95                          56.55                                             - 

b. Loans & Advances to others                        399.08                        369.71                                          - 

c. Loans & Advances to Related Parties                                    -                        117.19                                          - 

d. Others (specify nature)                                    -                                    -                                          - 

     Advance to Creditors                    1,888.90                        780.10                                98.63 

     Advance to Employees                             0.40                                    -                                          - 

     Others Advances                                    -                                    -                                37.21 

Total                   2,696.33                   1,323.55                             135.83 

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 SHARE CAPITAL (Rs In Lakhs) 

Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs. 

Authorised

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 16,000,000.00                     1,600.00                                16,000,000.00                     1,600.00                                3,500,000.00                        350.00                                    

Issued

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,567,900.00                     1,056.79                                6,340,769.00                        634.08                                    3,172,769.00                        317.28                                    

Subscribed & Paid up

Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each fully paid 10,567,900.00                     1,056.79                                6,340,769.00                        634.08                                    3,172,769.00                        317.28                                    

Total 10,567,900.00                   1,056.79                               6,340,769.00                      634.08                                   3,172,769.00                      317.28                                   

Note 9.1

Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs.

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the 
year 

                      6,340,769.00 634.08                                                          3,172,769.00 317.28                                                          3,172,769.00 317.28                                    

Shares Issued during the year -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                
Right Issues during the year -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                
Bonus Issues during the year 4,227,179.00                        422.72                                    3,168,000.00                        316.80                                    
Shares bought back during the year                                                   -                                                   -                                                   -                                                   -                                                   -                                                   - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,567,948.00                     1,056.79                                6,340,769.00                        634.08                                    3,172,769.00                        317.28                                    

Note 9.2

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

Hitesh P Dudhagara 1,952,783.00                        18.48                                      1,171,670.00                        18.48                                      1,171,670.00                        36.93                                      

Pragjibhai M Patel 785,581.00                           7.43                                         471,349.00                           7.43                                         471,349.00                           14.86                                      

Ronakben Dudhagara -                                                -                                                -                                                316,270.00                           9.97                                         

Hitesh P Patel HUF -                                                -                                                -                                                201,380.00                           6.35                                         

Mahesh Prabhudas Parmar -                                                -                                                -                                                102,000.00                           5.11                                         

Sanjay Popatlal Jain -                                                1,146,000.00                        18.07                                      -                                                -                                                

Hetal Doshi -                                                858,000.00                           13.53                                      -                                                -                                                

Chandresh Lotiya -                                                750,000.00                           11.83                                      -                                                -                                                

Praful R Khothari -                                                708,000.00                           11.17                                      210,000.00                           6.62                                     

Particulars

Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the co.

RECONCILIATION OF NUMBER OF SHARES

As at 1st April 2022 As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2024 

Name of Shareholder 

Share Capital

Equity Shares

As at 1st April 2022 

Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2023 

Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2024 



Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

NOTE 10: OTHER EQUITY

Securities Premium Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 1,476.32                               399.20                                  399.20                                  
Add : On issue of shares -                                              1,077.12                              
Less: Bonus Share Issue 422.72                                 -                                              
Less: Calls in arrears - by others -                                              -                                              -                                              

1,053.60                              1,476.32                              399.20                                 
Retained Earnings

As per last Balance Sheet 374.79                                  194.24                                  158.47                                  
Add:  Net profit for the current year 295.67                                  180.55                                  34.68                                     Less: Previous Year Income Tax Provision 

W/off

Less: Stamp Duty 

Less : To issue fully paid equity shares as bonus 
shares

Add: Profit for the year -                                               -                                               -                                               
Less: Share Issue Expense -                                                  
Less: Income Tax Writtern Off   -1.08                                     

670.46                               374.79                               194.24                                  
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year

-                                               -                                               -                                               

Total 1,724.06                          1,851.11                          593.45                              



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

11 BORROWINGS

Particulars 
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Secured 

(a) Term loans 

From banks 

HDFC Vehicle Loan                            6.38                           12.15                                        - 

HDFC Term Loan                       357.36                                    -                                        - 

    HDFC Car Loan                                    -                                        - 

    From Others                                    -                                        - 

Sub-total (a)                       363.73                           12.15                                        - 

Unsecured 

(b) Loans and advances from related parties                         63.00                                    -                                        - 

Sub-total (b)                         63.00                                    -                                        - 

Total                      426.73                          12.15                                        - 

13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Secured 

(a) Working Capital Loans

From Banks

HDFC Bank ltd                       169.16                        109.74                                        - 

                      169.16                        109.74                                        - 

Amount Payable Within 12 Months

HDFC Vehicle Loan                            7.12                             7.93                                        - 

HDFC Term Loan                         71.68                                    -                                        - 

Total                      247.96                       117.67                                        - 

14 Trade payables

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

(a) Micro,Small and Medium Enterprise                            4.45 

(b) Others

Not Due                                   -                                    -                             239.94 

Less than 01 Years                   1,263.41                           12.52                                  1.97 

01-02 Years                                   -                             1.93                                        - 

02-03 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

More than 3 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others

Less than 01 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

01-02 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

02-03 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

More than 3 Years                                   -                                    -                                  1.03 

Total                  1,267.86                          14.45                           242.94 

15 Provision

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Provision For

(a) Employee benefits

(i) Contribution to PF                                   -                                    -                                  0.04 

(ii) Bonus Payable

(iii) Salary Payable

(ii) Worker Salary Payable                                   -                                    -                                  0.47 

(b) Others (Specify nature)

(i)  Electricity Exp.                                       -                                        -                                       0.80 

(i) Audit Fees                                   -                                    - 

(ii) Income Tax                                    - 

(iii) Roc Fees                                   -                                    -                                  1.37 

Total                                   -                                    -                                 2.69 



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

16 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

(i) Statutory Remittance

    (i)  TDS Payable                                      2.66                                      1.56                                      0.42 

    (iii) Sevice Tax Payable                                            -                                            - 

    (ii)  TCS Payable                                            -                                      0.12                                            - 

    (iii) GST Payable                                      0.04                                            -                                      0.97 

                                           -                                            -                                            - 

(ii) Advanced from Customer                                 704.41                                   16.49                                            - 

                                           -                                            -                                            - 

(iii) Other Current Liabilities(Specify Nature)                                            -                                            - 

Professional Tax Workers                                      0.05                                      0.02                                      0.02 

Provident Fund                                            -                                      0.01 

Worker's Salary Payable                                      4.24                                      0.67 

Total                                711.40                                  18.86                                     1.41 

17 OTHER CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Provision For
(a) Employee benefits
(i) Contribution to PF                                            -                                            -                                      0.04 
(ii) RCM Payable 0.04
(iii) Professional Tax Payable 0.05
(ii) Worker Salary Payable                                      4.24                                            -                                      0.47 

(b) Others (Specify nature)
(i)  Electricity Exp.                                                -                                                -                                                - 

(i) Audit Fees                                            -                                            -                                      0.80 
(ii) Income Tax                                   62.08                                   60.84                                   12.15 
(iii) Roc Fees                                            -                                            -                                      1.37 

Total                                  66.41                                  60.84                                  14.84 



NOTES FORMING PART OF  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Sale of products 3,080.44                                    1,790.81                                    

Sale of Services 9.69                                             4.15                                             

Other Operating Income 23.67                                          137.81                                        

Total 3,113.80                                   1,932.77                                   

Note 18.1 PARTICULARS OF REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Manufactured Goods

Agricultural Parts -                                                    -                                                    

Other Brass Items 3,080.44                                    1,790.81                                    

3,080.44                                   1,790.81                                   

Sale of Services -                                                    -                                                    

Job Work Income 9.69                                             4.15                                             

9.69                                            4.15                                            

Other Operating Income

Rate Difference Income -                                                    0.15                                             

MEIS Subsidy Income -                                                    -                                                    

Duty Drawback Income 17.55                                          17.93                                          

Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 6.12                                             8.20                                             

Sale of Shares -                                                    109.71                                        

Rod Tape  Subsidy Income -                                                    1.83                                             

23.67                                         137.81                                       

Total 3,113.80                                   1,932.77                                   

Note 19 OTHER INCOME

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Interest Income 

From Bank FD Deposits 0.85                                             0.48                                             

Interest on Others 29.42                                          

Total 30.27                                         0.48                                            
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Note 20 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Opening Stock Raw Materials -                                                    -                                                    

Add:- Purchase of Raw Materials 2,940.55                                    1,881.96                                    

Clsoing Stock of Raw Materials                                                       -                                                       - 

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 2,940.55                                   1,881.96                                   

Note 20.1 PARTICULARS OF COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Consumed in Manufacturing

Brass Scrap (Honey, Zinc & Copper) 2,883.25                                    1,870.13                                    

Machinery Parts, Oil, Diesel and Packing Material 57.30                                          11.83                                          

Total 2,940.55                                   1,881.96                                   

Note 21 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK IN PROCESS AND WIP      

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods -                                                    -                                                    

Work In Progress 1,146.93                                    349.92                                        

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods -                                                    -                                                    

Work In Progress 349.92                                        19.64                                          

Net(Increase)/decrease (797.01)                                 (330.28)                                 

Note 22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

(a) Salaries and Wages 23.37                                          24.67                                          

(b) Contributions to Provident Fund & Other Fund

 Provident fund 0.06                                             0.06                                             

(c) Staff welfare expenses 0.87                                             -                                                    

Total 24.30                                         24.73                                         

Note 23 FINANCE COST

Finance Cost
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

(a) Interest expense :- 

     (i) Borrowings  17.28                                          7.60                                             

     (ii) Interest on TDS -                                                    0.01                                             

(b) Other borrowing costs 19.69                                          3.20                                             

Total 36.97                                         10.81                                         
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Note 24 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Depreciation Exp 44.88                                          11.08                                          

Total 44.88                                         11.08                                         

Note 25 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

Manufacturing Expenses

Labour Subcontracting/Job Work Exp 366.39                                        4.68                                             

Electric Power & Fuel 8.66                                             1.41                                             

Repair to Machinery 1.63                                             0.35                                             

Factory Reparing Exp 0.46                                             

Material Testing Exp. 0.31                                             

Freight & Forwarding Exp 12.38                                          32.42                                          

Establishment Expenses

Advertisement Expenses 14.84                                          1.08                                             

Rates & Taxes 0.03                                             0.03                                             

Payment To auditor 2.00                                                                                        1.95 

Donations 0.16                                             0.47                                             

Machinery Insurance 0.91                                             

Legal & Professional Fees 40.97                                          38.80                                          

Printing & Stationery Exp 0.64                                             -                                                    

Vehicle Exp 2.53                                             1.25                                             

Telephone Exp 0.44                                             0.39                                             

SABS Pre-Permit Fees 8.95                                             8.30                                             

Income tax Written off 3.43                                             -                                                        

Office Exp 0.36                                             0.15                                             

Miscellaneous Expense 47.07                                          0.99                                             

Total 512.14                                       92.27                                         

Note 25.1 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS:

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 
For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

a. auditor 2.00                                             1.95                                             

b. for taxation matters

c. for company law matters

d. for management services

e. for other services

f. for reimbursement of expenses

Total 2.00                                            1.95                                            

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Bhargav B Gusani Hitesh Dudhagara Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Proprietor Managing Director Whole Time Director

M. No. 120710 DIN: 00414604 DIN: 00414510

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar

Sd/- Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani Hiren Patoriya

UDIN:24120710BJZWDM5570 CS CFO

    For Sprayking Ltd.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2024 
 

Note: - 1 Significant accounting policies: 
 

1.0        Corporate Information 
 

SPRAYKINGLIMITED is a Limited Company, incorporated under the provisions of Companies 
Act, 1956 and having CIN: L29219GJ2005PLC045508. The Company is mainly engaged in the 
business of Trading & Exporting of Brass items like Brass sanitary fitting, Brass Agricultural 
item etc. The Registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No 237/B, Shop No. 4, GIDC, 
Phase II, Dared, Jamnagar - 361005. 
 

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements 
 

a. Accounting Convention: - 
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 133 of Companies 
Act, 2013, i.e. Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015. The Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared on 
historical cost convention, except in case of certain financial instruments which are 
recognized at fair value. 
 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Part I of Schedule Ill to 
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

 
b. Functional and Presentation Currency 

 
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes are rounded off to lakhs the 
nearest INR rupee in compliance with Schedule III of the Act, unless otherwise stated. 
 
The functional and presentation currency of the company is Indian rupees. This financial 
statement is presented in Indian rupees. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented 
throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not 
precisely reflect the absolute figures. 

 
c. Compliance with Ind AS 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

 
d. Use of Estimates and Judgments  

 
The preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in conformity with the generally 
accepted accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the Balance Sheet 
date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent 
labilities and contingent assets as of the date of Balance Sheet. The estimates and 
assumptions used in these Ind AS financial statements are based on management's 
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Ind AS financial 
statements. The actual amounts may differ from the estimates used in the preparation of 



Sprayking Ltd 
 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

the Ind AS financial statements and the difference between actual results and the estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialize. 
 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and 
in future periods affected. 
 
Particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial Statement are as below:  
 

1. Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets/Liabilities; 

2. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;  

3.Provisions and Contingencies;  

4. Provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for       

uncertain tax positions;  

5. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities 

6. Valuation of Financial Instruments;  

 
e. Current versus Non-Current Classification 

 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ 
non-current classification. 
 
An asset / liability is treated as current when it is:- 
  

i. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal 

operating cycle. 

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

iii. Expected to be realized / settled within twelve months after the reporting 

period, or. 

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 

a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.  

v. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period.  

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities 
respectively. 
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1.2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

 
(A) Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items.  

 
Cost includes purchase price, non-recoverable taxes and duties, labour cost and direct 
overheads for self-constructed assets and other direct costs incurred up to the date the asset 
is ready for its intended use. 

 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

 
Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value method (W.D.V.) over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating conditions, past 
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and 
maintenance support. The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the day the asset 
is put to use and for any asset sold, till the date of sale. 

 
Projects under commissioning and other Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost 
comprising of direct and indirect costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest. 
Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation 
are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit 
or loss. 

 
(B) Intangible Assets 

 
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, accumulated 
amortization, and impairment losses, if any. Such costs include purchase price, borrowing 
cost, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the 
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from 
exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.  
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and cost can be measured reliably.  
 
The amortisation period for intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed at each year-
end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
 
Internally generated intangible asset Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit 
and Loss in the year in which they are incurred. 
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The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of directly attributable 
expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition 
criteria to the completion of its development. 
 
Product development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairment, if any. Amortization is not recorded on product in progress until development 
is complete.  
 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible Asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

 
(C) Impairment of assets 

 
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to 
amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the 
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. 

 
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an 
impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet 
date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount 
subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost. 

 
(D) Leases 

 
 As a lessee 
 The Company has applied IND AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach. 
 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration.  

 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except 
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to 
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying 
assets. 
 
Right of use assets 
The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the 
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less 
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement 
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
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commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated 
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of 
the assets. 
 
Lease Liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured 
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments 
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives 
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 
to be paid under residual value guarantees.  
 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the 
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease 
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments 
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to 
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

 
As Lessor: 
At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an 
operating lease, based on contractual terms & substance of the lease arrangement. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.  

 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount 
of the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to 
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net 
investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 
 
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

 
(E) Segment Reporting 

 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).  
 
The Company has identified its Managing Director as CODM who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and makes strategic 
decisions. 
 
The Company is operating in single business segments. Hence, reporting requirement of 
Segment reporting is not arise. 
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(F) Statement of Cashflow 

 
Cash Flows of the Group are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax 
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing Cash Flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

 
(G) Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of up to three month that are readily convertible into 
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
(H) Inventories 

 
Inventories includes raw material, semi-finished goods, stock -in -trade, finished goods, 
stores & spares, consumables, packing materials, goods for resale and material in transit are 
valued at lower of cost and net  

 
Raw Material and Components - Cost include cost of purchases and other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. value Cost is determined 
on First-In-First-Out basis. 
 
Finished/Semi-Finished Goods - Cost includes cost of direct material, labor, other direct 
cost (Including variable costs) and a proportion of fixed manufacturing overheads allocated 
based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined 
on First-In-First-Out basis. 

 
Stock-in-trade - Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and conditions. Cost is determined on First-In-First-Out 
basis. 
 
Stores, Spare Parts, Consumables, Packing Materials etc. - Cost is determined on on First-In-
First-Out basis. 
 
Goods for Resale – valuation Cost is determined on First-In-First-Out basis. 
 
Realizable Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all 
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Adequate allowance is 
made for obsolete and slow-moving items. 

 
(I) Foreign Currency Transactions 

 
i) Initial Recognition 

  
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 
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ii)  Subsequent Recognition 

 
As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical 
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other 
similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange 
rates that existed when the values were determined. 
 
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of 
accounting period. Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
Any  subsequent events occurring after the Balance Sheet date up to the date of the approval 
of the financial statement of the Company by the board of directors on 30th May, 2022 have 
been considered, disclosed and adjusted, if changes or event are material in nature wherever 
applicable, as per the requirement of Ind AS . 

 
(J) Income Taxes 

 
The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity. In which case, the tax is also 
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity. 

 
I. Current tax: - 

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 
accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. Current 
tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the 
liability on a net basis. 
 

II. Deferred tax:- 
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising 
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial 
statements. 
 

Deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The carrying amount of 
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred income tax asset to be utilized. 
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(K)    Provisions and Contingencies 

 
Provisions: 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are discounted to 
its present value as appropriate. 

 
Contingent Liabilities: 

 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a 
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
be made, is termed as a contingent liability. 

 
(L) Revenue recognition 

 
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
recognized when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a 
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) 
the customer obtains control of that asset. 

 
When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue the 
amount of the transaction price (excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is 
allocated to that performance obligation. 
 
The Company applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue: 
 

i. Identification of contract(s) with customers;  

ii. Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;  

iii. Determination of transaction price;  

iv. Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and  

v. Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied. 

(M) Other income: 
 
  Interest: Interest income is calculated on effective interest rate, but recognised on a time 

proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 
 

Dividend: Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. 
  



Sprayking Ltd 
 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
(N) Finance Cost 

 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that 
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. based on 
borrowings incurred specifically for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all 
other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset. 

 
 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation. 
 
Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. 

 
All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for 
which they are incurred. 

  
(O)    Earnings per share (EPS): 

 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of additional equity 
shares that would have been outstanding are considered assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit 
for the period and any attributable tax thereto for the period. 

 
(P)     Employee benefits 

 
i. Provident Fund 

 
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution 
scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to 
the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the 
provident fund scheme as an expense when an employee renders the related 
service. 
 

ii. Gratuity 
 

Gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for gratuity is 
calculated on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out at balance sheet date 
and is charged to the statement of profit and loss. The actuarial valuation is 
performed using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement, comprising 
of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods. 
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(Q) Fair Value Measurement: 
 

The Company measures financial instruments such as investments in quoted share, certain 
other investments etc. at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.  
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at 
the measurement date. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed 
in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as 
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole. 
  

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.  

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

(R) Financial Instruments: 
 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 
Financial assets: 

 
Initial recognition 
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables and other 
specific assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial 
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are 
expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss 
on the basis of both: 
 

i. The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and  

ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

 

De-recognition 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it 
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company 
has retained. 
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        Financial Liabilities: 

 

Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing 
within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value 
due to the short maturity of these instruments. Changes in the amortised value of liability 
are recorded as finance cost. 
 

De-recognition  
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
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.  
26. The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, and reclassified wherever 

necessary. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral 
part of the current annual financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts 
and other disclosures relating to the current financial year. 
 

27. Credit and Debit balances of unsecured loans, sundry creditors, sundry Debtors, loans and 
Advances are subject to confirmation and therefore the effect of the same on profit could not 
be ascertained. 

 
28. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment for the current year. 

 
29. There has been no Capital work in progress for the current year of the company. 

 
30. There is no Intangible assets under development in the current year. 

 
31. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC 

beyond the statutory period. 
 

32. Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial 
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

 
33. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 

financial year. 
 

34. No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made 
thereunder. 

 
35. The company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

government or government authority. 
 

36. The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or 
entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall: 

 
a. directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

 
37. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign 

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) 
that the Company shall 

 
a. directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 



Sprayking Ltd 
 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

38. The company does not have transaction with the struck off under section 248 of companies 
act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies act 1956. 

39. The company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 
section 2 of company’s act read with companies (restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017. 

 
40. Related Parties Disclosure: - 

 
The Disclosures of Transaction with the related parties as defined in the related parties as 
defined in the Accounting Standard are given below: 
 

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships: - 
    

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Relationship Name of the Parties 

1. Key Managerial personnel (KMP) 1. Hitesh Dudhagara 
2. Pragjibhai Dudhagara 
3. Ronak Hitesh Dudhagara 
4. Hiren Jamanbhai Patoriya 
5. Dipesh Pravinchandra Pala 
6. Kaushik K Dudhagara 
7. CS Hetal Vachhani 

2. Enterprise In Which Director Has 
Interested 

1. Narmada Brass Industries 
2. Narmadeshwar Metal Private Limited 

   

 
Transaction during the current financial year with related parties:- 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Of related 
Parties 

Nature of relation 
Nature of 

Transaction 

O/s at the 
beginning 

Receivable/(P
ayable) 

Amount 
Debited 

Amount 
Credited 

O/s at the End 
Receivable/(P

ayable) 

1. Pragjibhai M Patel Whole Time Director 
Director 
Remuneration 

3.92 0.50 4.80 0.37 

2. 
Hitesh Pragajibhai 
Dudhagara 

Chairman & 
Managing Director 

Director 
Remuneration 

- 7.18 8.09 0.91 

3. Hetal P Vacchani 
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

Salary 0.15 1.82 1.82 0.15 

4. 
Ronak Hitesh 
Dudhagarar 

Director 
Director 
Remuneration 

0.15 2.80 2.70 0.25 

5. 
Hiren Jamanbhai 
Patoriya 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

Salary 0.15 2.80 2.70 0.25 

6. 
Narmada Brass 
Industries 

Enterprise In Which 
Director Has 
Interested 

Purchase/Sales - 450.62 386.56 64.07 

7. 
Narmada Metal 
Pvt Ltd 

Enterprise In Which 
Director Has 
Interested 

Investment - 510.00 - 510.00 



Sprayking Ltd 
 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
41. Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are as under:- 

Components of which are as under:- 
(Rs. In Lakh) 

Particulars 
Amount (Rs.) 

31-3-2024 
Amount (Rs.) 

31-3-2023 
Deferred Tax   
Block of assets (Depreciation) 51.06 (4.11) 
Net Differed Tax Liability/(Asset) 12.85 (1.15) 

 
42. Earnings Per Share 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particulars Year Ended on 

31st March, 2024 
(Rs.) 

Year Ended on 
31st March, 2023 

(Rs.) 
Profit / (Loss) after tax attributable to 
Equity Shareholders (A) 
 
Weighted Number of Equity Share 
outstanding During the year (B) (units in 
lakhs) 
 
Basic Earnings Per Share for each Share of 
Rs.10/-   
(A) / (B) 

269.07 
 
 

147.84 
 
 

1.82 

170.02 
 
 

40.15 
 
 

4.24 

 
43. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

 
The section 135 (Corporate social responsibility) of companies act, 2013 is not applicable to the 
company. 
 

44.Notes forming part of accounts in relation to Micro and small enterprise  
 

 

1. Based on information available with the company, on the status of the suppliers being Micro 
or small enterprises, on which the auditors have relied, the disclosure requirements of Schedule 
III to the Companies Act,2013 with regard to the payments made/due to Micro and small 
Enterprises are given below : 

(Rs In lakhs) 
Sr.  
No. 

Particulars Year Ended on 31st 
March 2024 

Year Ended on 31st 
March 2023 

  Principal Interest Principal Interest 
I Amount due as at the date of 

Balance sheet 
  4.45 Nil Nil Nil 

Ii Amount paid beyond the appointed 
date during the year 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Iii Amount of interest due and payable 
for the period of delay in making 
payments of principal during the 
year beyond the appointed date 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Iv The amount of interest accrued and 
remaining unpaid as at the date of 
Balance sheet 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

   



Sprayking Ltd 
 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 
The company has initiated the process of obtaining the confirmation from suppliers who have 
registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
(MSMED Act, 2006) but has not received the same in totality. The above information is compiled 
based on the extent of responses received by the company from its suppliers. 

 
45. Title deeds of immovable Property  

Tittle deeds of immovable property has not been held in the name of promoter,                    
director, or relative of promoter/ director or employee of promoters / director of the 
company, hence same are held in the name of the company. 

 
46. Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties: -    
No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and 
the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with 
any other person. 

 
47. Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements 

The Company does not have made any arrangements in terms of section 230 to 237 of 
companies act 2013, and hence there is no deviation to be disclosed.  

 
 

48. Ratios Analysis:- 
 

 
 

Ratio Numerator Denominator 

As at 
31st 

March, 
2024 

As at 
31st 

March, 
2023 

% of 
change in 

Ratio 

Reason for 
Variance 

Current 
Ratio 

Current 
Assets 

Current 
Liabilities 

1.85 
                   

12.35  
-85.02% 

Due to Decrease 
In Current 

Assets , Which 
Effects Ratio 

Positively. 

Debt 
Equity 
Ratio 

Total Debt 
Shareholder’s 
Equity 

                     
0.25  

                      
0.05  

368.77% 
Due to company 
has taken Debt 
in current year. 

Debt 
Service 
Coverage 
Ratio 

EBITDA 
Total 
Borrowings 

0.65 
                      

1.93  
-66.40% 

Due to company 
has taken Debt 
in current year. 
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Return on 
Equity Ratio 

Profit for the 
year 

Shareholder’s 
Equity 

                     
0.10  

                      
0.07  

42.74% 

Due to company 
has booked 
Handsome 
growth of profit. 

Inventory 
Turnover 
Ratio 

Sales 
Average 
Inventory 

2.36 
                   

10.46  
-

77.48% 

Due to High 
Inventories stock 
at end of the year. 

Trade 
Receivables 
turnover ratio 

Net Sales 
Closing Trade 
Receivables 

2.46 
                      

2.11  
16.27%   

Trade 
payables 
turnover ratio 

Total Purchases 
+ Manufacturing 
Exp. 

Closing Trade 
Payables 

2.32 
                 

132.96  
-

98.26% 

due to Promat 
payment is made 

to suppliers to 
purchase on 

credit  

Net capital 
turnover 
ratio 

Sales 
Working 
capital (CA-CL) 

                     
1.60  

                      
0.80  

98.75% 

Due to company 
is able to 

generate larger 
amount of sales  

Net profit 
ratio 

Net Profit Sales 0.09 
                      

0.09  
-1.77%   

Return on 
Capital 
employed 

Earnings before 
interest and tax 

Capital 
Employed 

                     
0.12  

                      
0.10  

27.30% 
Due to increasing 
equity of the 
company. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

TO MEMBERS OF 
SPRAYKING LIMITED 
(Formally Known as Sprayking Agro Equipment Ltd) 
 
Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Sprayking 
Limited,(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”)and its subsidiary company 
Narmadesh Brass Industries Limited which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as 
at 31st March, 2024, and the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss (Including Other 
Comprehensive Income) and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in 
Equity for the period ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.(Hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated Financial Statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view inconformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 
 

There are no Key Audit Matters Reportable as per SA 701 issued by ICAI. 
 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These reports are expected 
to be made available to us after the date of our auditor’s report. 
 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 
 
When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is 
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 



the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  Consolidated 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 



 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 
  



Other Matters 

The Consolidated Financial Statement of Subsidiary Company have been audited by us, whose 
financial statements reflect total assets of 822.95 lakhs as at 31st March, 2024, total revenues of 
3996.38 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Our opinion on the consolidated, and our report on legal and Regulatory Requirement below, is 
not modified in respect of the above matter.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in 
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matter specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
2. As required under provisions of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report 

that: 
 

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief where necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 
 

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet and Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of 
Changes of Equity dealt with this report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

 
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statement comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of Act, read with relevant rule issued 

thereunder. 

 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 

31, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of 

section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the company and operating effectiveness of such controls, referred to 

our separate report in “Annexure B”. 

 



g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 

the Act. 

 

h. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014, in our opinion 

and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations given to us: 

 

(a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 

2024 on its financial position in its Consolidated Financial Statements - Refer 

Note (vii) of Annexure – A  to the  Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

(b) The Company did not have any long-term and derivative contracts as at March 

31, 2024. 

 

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, 

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year 

ended March 31, 2024. 

 

(d) The management has; 

 

(i) represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the 

Note No. 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 

any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall: 

 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by 

or on behalf of the Company or 

 

 



 

 

 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

(ii) represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the 

Note No. 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been 

received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign 

entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall: 

 

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by 

or on behalf of the Funding Party or 

 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 
 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 

believe that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any 

material mis-statement. 

 

(e) The company has not neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year 

under Section 123 of the Act. 

 

 

(f) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining 

books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording 

audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to the 

Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, and 

accordingly, The Company has used accounting software ‘Tally Prime System’ 

for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 

facility and the same has been operated throughout 

 

 

 



 

 

the period for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has 

not been tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per 

the statutory requirements for record retention. 

 

 

 

 

FOR B B Gusani & Associates., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

Bhargav B. Gusani  

Proprietor 

M. No. 120710 

FRN: 140785W 

UDIN: 24120710BJZWDN1097   

                     Date: 28/05/2024  

  



 

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF POOJAWESTERN METALIKS 

LIMITEDFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024 
 
In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined 
by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state as 
under: 

 

(i) Qualifications Reporting in Group Companies: 
 

Whether there have been any qualifications or adverse remarks in audit of the Companies 

(Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated 

financial statements, if yes, indicate the details of the companies and the paragraph numbers 

of the CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks. 

 

 

            Auditor’s Remarks: 

 

   Our reporting on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 read with the proviso to 

paragraph (2) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, has been made in 

paragraph (2) of Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our Auditor’s Report 

on the consolidated audited financial statements. 

 

 

FOR B B Gusani & Associates., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

Bhargav B. Gusani  

Proprietor 

M. No. 120710 

FRN: 140785W 

UDIN: 24120710BJZWDN1097   

                     Date: 28/05/2024  

 

 
 
 

 



 
 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF POOJAWESTERN METALIKS 

LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')  
 
We have audited the internal financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Of Sprayking Limited. 
('the Company') as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the internal financial control with reference to financial statement of 
Sprayking Limited.(‘The Company”) and its Subsidiary company Narmadesh Brass Industries 
Limited as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statement of the 
company at and for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial 
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the ICAI. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 
 
  



Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that: 
 

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and  
 

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 



 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 
FOR B B Gusani & Associates., 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 

 

Bhargav B. Gusani  

Proprietor 

M. No. 120710 

FRN: 140785W 

UDIN: 24120710BJZWDN1097  

Date: 28/05/2024 

 
 



(Rs In lakhs) 

Notes
As at 

31st March 2024
As at 

31st March 2023
As at 1st April 2022

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE
II. ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

(a) Property Plant & Equipment 2 1,429.27                               54.60                                     23.86

(b) Capital work-in-progress

( C) Investment Property

(d)  Goodwill 278.41                                   

( e) Other Intangible assets

(f)

(g) Financial Assets

i. Investments 3 100.74                                   

ii. Trade Receivables

iii. Loan

iv. Other Financial AssetsSecurity Deposits 4 17.64                                     27.13                                     13.17                                     

(h) Deferred tax Asset(Net) 12 1.15                                       2.17

(i) Other Non-Current Assets 5 67.21

1,893.26                              82.88                                    39.20                                    

2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 6 2,684.71                               349.92                                   19.64                                     

(b) Financial Assets

i.Investments

ii. Trade Receivables 7 972.09                                   915.01                                   935.12                                   

iii.Cash and Cash Equivelants 8 343.37                                   1.17                                       40.13

iv. Bank balance other than(iii) above

(d) Other Current Assets 9 3,771.39                               1,323.55                               135.83

7,771.57                              2,589.66                              1,130.72                              

9,664.82                          2,672.53                              1,169.92                              

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Equity

(a) Share Capital 10 1,056.79                               634.08                                   317.28                                   

(b) Other Equity 11 1,897.63                            1,840.58                            593.45                                   

(c) 380.24                               

3,334.67                          2,474.66                          910.73                              

2 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

i.Borrowings 12 481.13                                   12.15                                     -                                              

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13 18.08                                     

499.21                              12.15                                 -                                     

3 Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

i.Borrowings 14 2,962.89                               117.67                                   -                                              

ii.Trade payables 15

35.78                                     

1,529.94                               14.45                                     242.94                                   

(b) 16 11.10                                     2.69                                       

(c) Other Current Liabilities 17 965.31                                   18.86                                     1.41                                       

(d) Other Current Tax Libilities 18 325.92                                   34.74                                     12.15                                     

5,830.93                          185.72                                  259.19                              

6,330.15                              197.87                                  259.19                                  

Total Equity and Liabilities 9,664.82                          2,672.53                          1,169.92                          

Accounting Policies  & Notes on Accounts 1

As per our Report on Even date attached

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director Whole Time Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604 DIN: 00414510

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/- Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani Hiren Patoriya

UDIN:24120710BJZWDN1097 CS CFO

Particulars

SPRAYKING  LIMITED

(CIN:L29219GJ2005PLC045508)

(Reg Office : PLOT NO 237/B, SHOP NO. 4, GIDC, PHASE II, DARED JAMNAGAR  361005 )

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

(Formally Known As Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)

Biological Assets other than bearer 
plants

Total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

    For Sprayking Ltd.

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets (1+2)

Total Equity

Total Non-Current  Liabilities

Total Current  Liabilities

Total  Liabilities

Provision

Non controlling Interests



(Rs In lakhs) 

Notes
For the year ended 

31 march 2024

For the year ended 

31 march 2023

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE

I. Revenue from operations 19 10,166.44                             1,932.77                               

II. Other Income 20 37.12                                     0.48                                        

III. Total Income (I + II) 10,203.56                             1,933.25                               

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 21 9,148.08                               1,881.96                               

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-

progress and Stock-in-Trade
22 (1,169.33)                            (330.28)                               

Employee benefits expense 23 248.44                                   35.26                                     

Finance Costs 24 135.83                                   10.81                                     

Depreciation and amortization expense 25 194.57                                   11.08                                     

Other expenses 26 403.08                                   92.27                                     

Total expenses 8,960.67                               1,701.10                               

V. Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 1,242.89                               232.15                                   

VI Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 332.06 61.11

(2) Deferred tax 19.23                                     1.02                                        

VII Profit and loss from the continuing opration 891.60                                  170.02                                  

Profit and loss from the discontinuing opration (Net of Tax )

Profit/Loss for the year 891.60                                  170.02                                  

Other Comprehensive Income

  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be     

reclassified to profit or loss

B.(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

   (ii) income tax relating to items that will be 

reclassified to profit or loss

Total of Comprehensive income

Profit/(Loss) After Other Comprehensive Income 891.60                                  170.02                                  

VIII Earnings per equity share:( Continuing operation)

(1) Basic 6.03                                    4.24                                    

(2) Diluted 6.03                                    4.24                                    

Accounting Policies  & Notes on Accounts 1

As per our Report on Even date attached

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director Whole Time Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604 DIN: 00414510

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/- Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani Hiren Patoriya

UDIN:24120710BJZWDN1097 CS CFO

    For Sprayking Ltd. 

Particulars

SPRAYKING  LIMITED

(CIN:L29219GJ2005PLC045508)

(Reg Office : PLOT NO 237/B, SHOP NO. 4, GIDC, PHASE II, DARED JAMNAGAR  361005 )

CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

A.(i) Items that will not reclassified to profit or loss

(Formally Known As Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited)



Amount (In Rs.) Amount (In Rs.) Amount (In Rs.) Amount (In Rs.) 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit Before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 891.60                                      232.15                                      

Adjustments for : 

               Depreciation & Amortisation Exp. 194.57                                      11.08                                        

               Dividend Income (0.97)                                       -                                                  

               Profit on sale of machinery (0.83)                                       -                                                  

               Adjustments for Goodwill (278.41)                                  -                                                  

               Bed Debt W/off -                                                  -                                                  

               Deffered Asset -                                                  -                                                  

               Interest Income (29.41)                                     (0.48)                                       

               Finance Cost 135.83                                      20.78                                        10.80                                        21.40                                        

Operating Profit before working capital changes 912.40                                     253.55                                     

Changes in Working  Capital 

               Trade  receivable  (57.08)                                     20.11                                        

               Inventories  (2,334.79)                               (330.28)                                  

               Trade Payables  1,551.27                                  (228.50)                                  

               Other Current Liabilites 946.45                                      17.45                                        

               other assets (3,009.98)                               -                                                  

               Short term Provisions  291.18                                      46.00                                        

              Provision  11.10                                        (2,611.34)                               (475.22)                                  

             Other financial Assets  (9.49)                                       

Net Cash Flow from Operation (1,698.94)                               (221.67)                                  

               Tax Paid 332.06                                      61.10                                        

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) (2,031.00)                               (282.77)                                  

B. Cash flow from investing Activities 

                Purchase of Fixed Assets (667.60)                                  (41.83)                                     

                Purchase of Investments (100.74)                                  -                                                  

               Other Loans and advances receivable  (1,227.77)                               

                Movement in Loan & Advances (67.21)                                     -                                                  

                Interest Income 29.41                                        0.48                                           

                Dividend Income 0.97                                           -                                                  

(805.17)                                  (1,269.12)                               

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (805.17)                                  (1,269.12)                               

Sr. No. Particulars 
F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23 

SPRAYKING  LIMITED 

(CIN:L29219GJ2005PLC045508) 

(Reg Office : PLOT NO 237/B, SHOP NO. 4, GIDC, PHASE II, DARED JAMNAGAR  361005 ) 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(Formally Known As Sprayking Agro Equipment Limited) 



C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

                 Proceeds From Issue of shares capital -                                                  1,393.92                                  

                 Proceeds From long Term Borrowing (Net) 2,845.22                                  12.15                                        

                 Short Term Borrowing (Net) 468.98                                      117.67                                      

                 Interest Paid (135.83)                                  (10.80)                                     

                 Dividend paid ( Including DDT) -                                                  3,178.37                                  -                                                  1,512.93                                  

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 3,178.37                                  1,512.93                                  

D. Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents  (A+B+C) 342.21                                     (38.96)                                    

E. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 1.17                                           40.13                                        

F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 343.38                                     1.17                                          

G. Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise : 

Cash     1.16                                           0.69                                           

Bank Balance : 

Current Account 342.21                                      0.48                                           

Deposit Account 

Total 343.38                                     1.17                                          

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani

UDIN:24120710BJZWDN1097 CS

Sd/-

Hiren Patoriya

CFO

Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Whole Time Director

DIN: 00414510

    For Sprayking Ltd.

Sd/-



Note 2 FIXED ASSETS

Balance as at
1st April 2023

Additions
Disposal/ 

(Adjustment)
Balance as at

31st March 2024
Balance as at

1st April 2023

Amount Charged to 
Reserves (refer 

Note below)

Depreciation 
charge for the 

year

Deductions/ 
Adjustments

Balance as at
31st March 2024

Balance as at
31st March 2024

Balance as at
1st April 2023

a Tangible Assets

GIDC Housing Plot 11.87                       -                        -                      11.87                        -                           -                               -                          -                    -                             11.87                        11.87                    

Plant  and  Machinery 26.45                       1,422.00              -                      1,448.45                   11.82                       -                               89.34                      -                    101.16                      1,347.29                  14.63                    

Vehicles 35.81                       24.47                    -                      60.28                        8.80                         -                               10.62                      -                    19.42                         40.85                        27.01                    

Computer 6.73                         8.26                      -                      14.99                        6.22                         -                               0.98                        -                    7.20                           7.80                          0.51                      

Mobile Instrument 1.49                         -                        -                      1.49                           0.91                         -                               0.34                        -                    1.25                           0.24                          0.58                      

Furniture 12.61                     12.61                        -                           1.20                          1.20                           11.41                        -                        

Electrial Fittings 11.35                     11.35                        -                           1.54                          1.54                           9.81                          -                        

 Total 82.35                     1,478.69            -                     1,561.04                 27.76                       -                              104.02                  -                   130.23                     1,429.27                54.60                  

(Rs In Lakhs)

Fixed Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

3 INVESTMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

a. Preliminery Expenses                                      -                                      -                                            - 

b. Other Non Current Investment
     Fixed Deposit                       100.74 

Total                      100.74                                   -                                         - 

4 Security Deposits

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

a. Security Deposits                          17.64                          27.13                               13.17 

Total                         17.64                         27.13                               13.17 

5 Security Deposits

Particulars 
As at 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

Security Deposits

Pgvcl Deposite 12.01

Building Deposite                          55.00 

NSDL Deposite 0.10

CDSL  Deposite                               0.10                                      -                                            - 

Total                         67.21                                   -                                         - 

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 



6 Inventories

Particulars 
As at 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

a. Raw Materials and components 513.63

(Valued at Lower of Cost or NRV as per FIFO Method)

b. Work-in-progress                       778.82                       349.92                               19.64 

(Valued At Estimated Cost)

c. Finished goods (Valued at Cost or NRV as per FIFO)                       1,392.26                                      -                                            - 

(Valued At Lower of Cost or NRV)

d. Stores and spares & Packing Materials                                      -                                      -                                            - 

(Valued at Lower of Cost or NRV as per FIFO Method)

Total                  2,684.71                      349.92                               19.64 



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

7 Trade Receivables

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

Undisputed Trade Receivable - Cosidered good

Not Due                                    -                                    -                                35.21 

Less than 6 Months                        533.56                        910.63                                   8.28 

6 Months - 1 Years                        431.65                             4.39                              889.30 

01-02 Years                             0.24                                    -                                   2.08 

02-03 Years                             0.10                                    -                                          - 

More than 3 Years                             4.72                                    -                                   0.25 

Undisputed Trade Receivable - Cosidered 

doubtful

More Then 3 Years                             1.82 

Total                       972.09                       915.01                             935.12 

8 Cash and Cash Equivelants

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

a. Balances with banks

    HDFC Bank Ltd - 1613 80.08                               0.06                                 3.40                                        

    HDFC Bank Ltd- 9170 0.29                                 0.29                                 0.29                                        

    Central Bank Of India -                                        -                                        1.11                                        

    HDFC O/d A/c -                                        -                                        33.78                                     

    HDFC Bank -0893 226.30                             -                                        -                                              

   HDFC Dollar Account 34.84                               -                                        -                                              

    The Navanagar Bank 0.14                                 0.13                                 0.13                                        

    HDFC Bank 0.34                                 

-                                        -                                        -                                              

b. Cash on hand 1.38                                 0.69                                 1.42                                        

Total                       343.37                            1.17                               40.13 

9 Other Current Assets

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

a. Balance with Government Authorities                        407.95                          56.55                                             - 

b. Loans & Advances to others                        399.08                        369.71                                          - 

c. Loans & Advances to Related Parties                                    -                        117.19                                          - 

d. Others (specify nature)                                    -                                    -                                          - 

     Advance to Creditors                    2,910.09                        780.10                                98.63 

     Advance to Employees                             0.40                                    -                                          - 

     Others Advances                          53.87                                    -                                37.21 

Total                   3,771.39                   1,323.55                             135.83 

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10 SHARE CAPITAL (Rs In Lakhs) 

Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs. 

Authorised

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 16,000,000.00                     1,600.00                                16,000,000.00                     1,600.00                                3,500,000.00                        350.00                                    

Issued

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,567,900.00                     1,056.79                                6,340,769.00                        634.08                                    3,172,769.00                        317.28                                    

Subscribed & Paid up

Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each fully paid 10,567,900.00                     1,056.79                                6,340,769.00                        634.08                                    3,172,769.00                        317.28                                    

Total 10,567,900.00                   1,056.79                               6,340,769.00                      634.08                                   3,172,769.00                      317.28                                   

Note 10.1

Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs. Number Amt. Rs.

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the 
year 

                      6,340,769.00 634.08                                                          3,172,769.00 317.28                                                          3,172,769.00 317.28                                    

Shares Issued during the year -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                
Right Issues during the year -                                                -                                                -                                                -                                                
Bonus Issues during the year 4,227,179.00                        422.72                                    3,168,000.00                        316.80                                    
Shares bought back during the year                                                   -                                                   -                                                   -                                                   -                                                   -                                                   - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,567,948.00                     1,056.79                                6,340,769.00                        634.08                                    3,172,769.00                        317.28                                    

Note 10.2

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

Hitesh P Dudhagara 1,952,783.00                        18.48                                      1,171,670.00                        18.48                                      1,171,670.00                        36.93                                      

Pragjibhai M Patel 785,581.00                           7.43                                         471,349.00                           7.43                                         471,349.00                           14.86                                      

Ronakben Dudhagara -                                                -                                                -                                                316,270.00                           9.97                                         

Hitesh P Patel HUF -                                                -                                                -                                                201,380.00                           6.35                                         

Mahesh Prabhudas Parmar -                                                -                                                -                                                102,000.00                           5.11                                         

Sanjay Popatlal Jain -                                                1,146,000.00                        18.07                                      -                                                -                                                

Hetal Doshi -                                                858,000.00                           13.53                                      -                                                -                                                

Chandresh Lotiya -                                                750,000.00                           11.83                                      -                                                -                                                

Praful R Khothari -                                                708,000.00                           11.17                                      210,000.00                           6.62                                     

Particulars

Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the co.

RECONCILIATION OF NUMBER OF SHARES

As at 1st April 2022 As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2024 

Name of Shareholder 

Share Capital

Equity Shares

As at 1st April 2022 

Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2023 

Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2024 



Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

NOTE 11: OTHER EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE

Securities Premium Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 1,476.32                               399.20                                  399.20                                  
Add : On issue of shares -                                              1,077.12                              
Less: Bonus Share Issue 422.72                                 -                                              
Less: Calls in arrears - by others -                                              -                                              -                                              

1,053.60                              1,476.32                              399.20                                 
Retained Earnings

As per last Balance Sheet 364.26                                  194.24                                  158.47                                  
Add:  Net profit for the current year 479.77                                  170.02                                  34.68                                     Less: Previous Year Income Tax Provision 
W/off

Less: Stamp Duty 

Less : To issue fully paid equity shares as bonus 

shares

Add: Profit for the year -                                               -                                               -                                               
Less: Share Issue Expense -                                                  
Less: Income Tax Writtern Off   -1.08                                     

844.03                               364.26                               194.24                                  
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year

-                                               -                                               -                                               

Total 1,897.63                          1,840.58                          593.45                              



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

12 BORROWINGS

Particulars 
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

Secured 

(a) Term loans 

From banks 

HDFC Vehicle Loan                            6.38                           12.15                                        - 

HDFC Term Loan                       357.36                                    -                                        - 

HDFC Term Loan Solar                         54.32 

    HDFC Car Loan                                    -                                        - 

    From Others                                    -                                        - 

Sub-total (a)                       418.05                           12.15                                        - 

Unsecured 

(b) Loans and advances from related parties                         63.08                                    -                                        - 

Sub-total (b)                         63.08                                    -                                        - 

Total                      481.13                          12.15                                        - 

14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

Secured 

(a) Working Capital Loans

From Banks

HDFC Bank ltd                       169.16                        109.74                                        - 

                      169.16                        109.74                                        - 

Amount Payable Within 12 Months

HDFC Vehicle Loan                            7.12                             7.93                                        - 

HDFC Term Loan                         71.68                                    -                                        - 

HDFC Bank Term Loan                         19.68 

HDFC Bank Term Loan Solar                         22.80 

HDFC Bank Ltd                       927.70 

(b) From Partners /Pramoters                   1,024.67 

(c) Loan from others                       720.08 

Total                  2,962.89                       117.67                                        - 

15 Trade payables

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

(a) Micro,Small and Medium Enterprise                         35.78 

(b) Others

Not Due                                   -                                    -                             239.94 

Less than 01 Years                   1,529.94                           12.52                                  1.97 

01-02 Years                                   -                             1.93                                        - 

02-03 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

More than 3 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others

Less than 01 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

01-02 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

02-03 Years                                       -                                        -                                             - 

More than 3 Years                                   -                                    -                                  1.03 

Total                  1,565.72                          14.45                           242.94 

16 Provision

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

Provision For

(a) Employee benefits

(i) Contribution to PF                                   -                                    -                                  0.04 

(ii) Bonus Payable

(iii) Salary Payable

(ii) Worker Salary Payable                         10.60                                    -                                  0.47 

(b) Others (Specify nature)

(i)  Electricity Exp.                                       -                                        -                                       0.80 

(ii) Audit Fees                            0.50                                    - 

(iii) Roc Fees                                   -                                    -                                  1.37 

Total                        11.10                                    -                                 2.69 



Notes No (Rs In Lakhs) 

17 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

(i) Statutory Remittance

    (i)  TDS Payable                                      2.66                                      1.56                                      0.42 

    (iii) Sevice Tax Payable                                            -                                            - 

    (ii)  TCS Payable                                            -                                      0.12                                            - 

    (iii) GST Payable                                      0.04                                            -                                      0.97 

                                           -                                            -                                            - 

(ii) Advanced from Customer                                 958.19                                   16.49                                            - 

                                           -                                            -                                            - 

(iii) Other Current Liabilities(Specify Nature)                                            -                                            - 

Professional Tax Workers                                      0.16                                      0.02                                      0.02 

Provident Fund                                      0.02                                      0.01 

Worker's Salary Payable                                      4.24                                      0.67 

Total                                965.31                                  18.86                                     1.41 

18 OTHER CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Particulars
As At 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
As at 1st April 2022 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE STANDALONE 

Provision For
(a) Employee benefits
(i) Contribution to PF                                            -                                            -                                      0.04 
(ii) RCM Payable 0.04
(iii) Professional Tax Payable 0.16
(ii) Worker Salary Payable                                      4.24                                            -                                      0.47 

(b) Others (Specify nature)
(i)  Electricity Exp.                                                -                                                -                                                - 

(i) Audit Fees                                            -                                            -                                      0.80 
(ii) Income Tax                                 321.48                                   60.84                                   12.15 
(iii) Roc Fees                                            -                                            -                                      1.37 

Total                                325.92                                  60.84                                  14.84 



NOTES FORMING PART OF  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Sale of products 9,717.08                                     1,790.81                                     

Sale of Services 415.47                                        4.15                                             

Other Operating Income 33.89                                           137.81                                        

Total 10,166.44                                1,932.77                                   

Note 18.1 PARTICULARS OF REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Manufactured Goods

Agricultural Parts 2,781.00                                     -                                                    

Other Brass Items 7,181.37                                     1,790.81                                     

Export Sales 450.80                                        

10,413.17                                1,790.81                                   

Sale of Services -                                                    

Job Work Income 565.72                                        4.15                                             

565.72                                       4.15                                            

Other Operating Income

Rate Difference Income 0.91                                             0.15                                             

PGVCL Interest Income 1.09                                             -                                                    

Duty Drawback Income 22.95                                           17.93                                           

Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 8.93                                             8.20                                             

Sale of Shares -                                                    109.71                                        

Rod Tape  Subsidy Income -                                                    1.83                                             

33.88                                          137.81                                       

Total 11,012.77                                1,932.77                                   

Note 19 OTHER INCOME

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Interest Income 

From Bank FD Deposits 0.85                                             0.48                                             

Interest on Others 29.42                                           

Other income 

Subsidy income 6.85                                             

Total 37.12                                          0.48                                            



NOTES FORMING PART OF  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Opening Stock Raw Materials 103.25                                        -                                                    

Add:- Purchase of Raw Materials 9,234.02                                     1,881.96                                     

Clsoing Stock of Raw Materials 189.19                                                                                           - 

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 9,148.08                                   1,881.96                                   

Note 20.1 PARTICULARS OF COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Consumed in Manufacturing

Brass Scrap (Honey, Zinc & Copper) 9,046.61                                     1,870.13                                     

Machinery Parts, Oil, Diesel and Packing Material 101.47                                        11.83                                           

Total 9,148.08                                   1,881.96                                   

Note 21 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK IN PROCESS AND WIP      

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods 1,144.44                                     -                                                    

Work In Progress 1,351.08                                     349.92                                        

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods 818.23                                        -                                                    

Work In Progress 507.96                                        19.64                                           

Net(Increase)/decrease (1,169.33)                             (330.28)                                 

Note 22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

(a) Salaries and Wages 242.63                                        35.20                                           

(b) Contributions to Provident Fund & Other Fund

 Provident fund 0.86                                             0.06                                             

(c) Staff welfare expenses 4.95                                             -                                                    

Total 248.44                                       35.26                                          

Note 23 FINANCE COST

Finance Cost
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

(a) Interest expense :- 

     (i) Borrowings  87.65                                           7.60                                             

     (ii) Interest on TDS 0.01                                             

(b) Other borrowing costs 48.18                                           3.20                                             

Total 135.83                                       10.81                                          



NOTES FORMING PART OF  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 24 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Depreciation Exp 194.57                                        11.08                                           
Total 11.08                                          

Note 25 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE 

Manufacturing Expenses

Labour Subcontracting/Job Work Exp 71.49                                           4.68                                             
Electric Power & Fuel 94.32                                           1.41                                             
Repair to Machinery 1.63                                             0.35                                             
Factory Reparing Exp 29.58                                           
Material Testing Exp. 0.31                                             
Freight & Forwarding Exp 20.96                                           32.42                                           

-                                                    
Establishment Expenses -                                                    
Advertisement Expenses 17.11                                           1.08                                             
Rates & Taxes 0.14                                             0.03                                             
Payment To auditor 2.00                                                                                        1.95 
Donations 0.16                                             0.47                                             
Machinery Insurance 0.91                                             
Legal & Professional Fees 81.35                                           38.80                                           
Printing & Stationery Exp 0.64                                             -                                                    
Vehicle Exp 2.53                                             1.25                                             
Telephone Exp 0.44                                             0.39                                             
SABS Pre-Permit Fees 8.95                                             8.30                                             
Income tax Written off 3.43                                             -                                                     

Office Exp 0.36                                             0.15                                             
Miscellaneous Expense 66.77                                           0.99                                             
Tds Late payment 

Total 403.08                                       92.27                                          

Note 25.1 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS:

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 march 2024 

For the year ended 

31 march 2023 

a. auditor 2.00                                             1.95                                             
b. for taxation matters
c. for company law matters
d. for management services
e. for other services
f. for reimbursement of expenses

Total 2.00                                            1.95                                            

For B B Gusani & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Hitesh Dudhagara Pragjibhai Dudhagara

Bhargav B Gusani Managing Director Whole Time Director

Proprietor DIN: 00414604 DIN: 00414510

M. No. 120710

FRN No. 140785W

Place : Jamnagar Sd/- Sd/-

Date : 28/05/2024 Hetal Vachhani Hiren Patoriya

UDIN:24120710BJZWDN1097 CS CFO

    For Sprayking Ltd.

Particulars 



SPRAYKING LIMITED 

     Year ended on 31st March 2024 

 
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note: - 1 Significant accounting policies: 
 

1.0        Corporate Information 
 

SPRAYKINGLIMITED is a Limited Company, incorporated under the provisions of Companies 
Act, 1956 and having CIN: L29219GJ2005PLC045508. The Company is mainly engaged in the 
business of Trading & Exporting of Brass items like Brass sanitary fitting, Brass Agricultural 
item etc. The Registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No 237/B, Shop No. 4, GIDC, 
Phase II, Dared, Jamnagar - 361005. 
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company. 
 

Company / Firm 
Country of 

incorporation 
% of shareholding at end of 

the year 

Narmadesh Brass 
Industries Limited 

India 60% 

 

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements 
 

a. Accounting Convention: - 
 

These Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian GAAP”). Indian GAAP 
comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the 
Historical Cost Convention. and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 
2016 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
b. Use of Estimates and Judgments  

 
The preparation of Consolidated financial statement in conformity with accounting 
standard requires the Management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These 
estimates, judgments and assumptions affects the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of financial statement and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during 
the period. Accounting estimates could change form period to period. Actual result could 
differ from those estimates. As soon as the Management is aware of the changes, 
appropriate changes in estimates are made. The effect of such changes are reflected in the 
period in which such changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to financial statement. 
 
 
 



c. Current and Non - Current Classification 
 

An asset or a liability is classified as Current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 

i. It is expected to be realized / settled, or is intended for sales or consumptions, in the 
Company's Normal Operating Cycle; 
 

ii.  It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded. 
 

iii. It is expected to be realized / due to be settled within twelve months after the end of 
reporting date; 

 
iv. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 
 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 

  For the purpose of Current / Non - Current classification of assets and liabilities, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature 
of services and the time between the acquisition of the assets or liabilities for processing 
and their realization in Cash and Cash Equivalents. 

 
d. Principles of consolidation 

 
The financial statements of the SPRAYKING LIMITED (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary companies 
are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intragroup 
transactions in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS) 110 - “Consolidated Financial 
Statements”. 
 
 

a. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined 
on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and 
intragroup transactions in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS) 110 - 
“Consolidated Financial Statements”. 
 

b. The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets 
at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financial 
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. 
 

c. The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and 
the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised 
in the consolidated Profit and Loss Statement being the profit or loss on disposal of 
investment in subsidiary.  

 
d. Minority Interest’s share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is 

identified and adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net 
income attributable to shareholders of the Company.  

 



e. Minority Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and 
presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of 
the Company’s shareholders. 

 
f. As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform 

accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and 
are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1.2 Basis of Preparation 
 

a) Presentation and Disclosure of Separate Financial Statements 
 

These financial statements have been prepared as per “Schedule - III” notified under the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has also reclassified / regrouped / restated the 
previous year figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year. 
 

b) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:- 

 
i. The company has adopted Cost Model to measure the gross carrying amount of fixed 

assets. 
 

ii. Tangible Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. 
Cost includes the purchase price and all other attributable costs incurred for bringing 
the asset to its working condition for intended use. 

 
iii. Intangible assets are stated at the consideration paid for acquisition and customization 

thereof less accumulated amortization. 
 
iv. Cost of fixed assets not ready for use before the balance sheet date is disclosed as Capital 

Work in Progress. 
 

v. Cost of Intangible Assets not ready for use before the balance sheet date is disclosed as 
Intangible Assets under Development. 

 
c) Depreciation / Amortisation : - 
 

Depreciation has been provided under written down value method at the rates prescribed 
under schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on single shift and Pro Rata Basis to result in 
a more appropriate preparation or presentation of the financial statements. 
 
In respect of assets added/sold during the year, pro-rata depreciation has been provided at 
the rates prescribed under Schedule II. 
 
Intangible assets being Software are amortized over a period of its useful life on a straight 
line basis, commencing from date the assets is available to  the company for its use. 



 

d) Impairment of Assets:- 
 

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
value. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in 
which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior period is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount. 
 

e) Investments:- 
 

 Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-
term investment is made only if such decline is other than temporary. 
 

 Current investments are stated at lower of cost or market value. The determination of 
carrying amount of such investment is done on the basis of specific identification. 

 
 

f) Government Grants and Subsidies:- 
 

The Company is entitled to receive any subsidy from the Government authorities or any 
other authorities in respect of manufacturing or other facilities are dealt as follows: 

 
 Grants in the nature of subsidies which are non – refundable are credited to the 

respective accounts to which the grants relate, on accrual basis, where there is 
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with all the necessary conditions 
attached to them. 
 

 Grants in the nature of Subsidy which are Refundable are shown as Liabilities in the 
Balance Sheet at the Reporting date. 

 
 

g) Retirement Benefits:- 
 

a) Short Term Employee Benefits: 
 
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified 
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term 
compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are 
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

 
b) Employment Benefits: 

 
i) Defined Contribution Plans: 

 
The company has Defined Contribution Plans for post employment benefit in the form 
of Provident Fund which are administered by the Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner. Provident Fund are classified as defined contribution plans as the 
company has no further obligation beyond making contributions. The company’s 
contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss as and when incurred. 

 



ii)Defined Benefit Plans: 
 

a) Provident Fund : 
 
Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme as the company pays fixed 
contribution at pre-determined rates. The obligation of the company is limited to 
such fixed contribution. The contributions are charged to Profit & Loss A/c. 
 

b) Gratuity: 
 
The Management has decided to apply pay-as-you-go method of gratuity provision. 
So gratuity will be accounted in the Profit & Loss A/c in the financial year in which 
the employee retires and provision will not be made on yearly basis. 

 
c) Leave Encashment: 

 
The Management has decided to apply pay-as-you-go method for payment of leave 
encashment. So amount of leave encashment will be accounted in the Profit & Loss 
A/c in the financial year in which the employee retires and provision will not be 
made on yearly basis. 

 

h) Valuation of Inventory: - 
   

Inventories of the raw material, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing material, stores 
and spares, components, consumables and stock in trade are carried at lower of cost and 
net realizable value. However, raw material and other items held for use in production of 
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net 
realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 
 
Cost of inventories included the cost incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and conditions are accounted as follows: 
 
a) Raw Material: - Cost included the purchase price and other direct or indirect costs 
incurred to bring the inventories into their present location and conditions. Cost is 
determined on First in First out basis (FIFO). 
 
b) Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress: - Work in progress are valued at cost which 
includes raw materials and cost incurred till the stage of production of process. Finished 
Goods are valued at cost or Net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost included cost of 
direct materials and the labor cost and a proportion of manufacturing overhead based on 
the normal operating capacity, but excluding the borrowing costs. Cost is determined on 
“First in First out basis (FIFO)”. 
 
c) Stock in Trade: - Cost included the purchase price and other direct or indirect costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions. Cost is 
determined on “Weighted Average Basis”. 

 
All other inventories of stores and spares, consumables, project material at site are valued 
at cost. The stock of waste or scrap is valued at net realizable value. 

 



“Net Realizable Value” is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sales of the 
products. 

 
i) Revenue Recognition :- 

 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services 
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. The Company is generally the principal as it typically 
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. 

 
Generally, control is transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods 
is made available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the 
Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or future obligations with 
respect to the goods shipped. 

 
Other operating revenues comprise of income from ancillary activities incidental to the 
operations of the Company and is recognized when the right to receive the income is 
established as per the terms of the contract. Service income is recognized as and when 
services are rendered as per the terms of the contract. 
 
Interest Income is Recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rate applicable i.e. on the basis of matching concept.. 
 
Dividend from investments in shares / units is recognized when the company. 
 
As per a recent ICAI opinion, the benefit of DEPB is recognized in the year of export itself, 
provided no uncertainty exists,  
 
Other items of Income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises. 
 

j) Accounting for effects of changes in foreign exchange rates :- 

 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange 
rate prevailing at the time of the transactions. 
 
Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on 
Balance sheet Valuation is recognized in the profit and loss account except in cases where 
they relate to acquisition of fixed assets in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost 
of such assets.  
 
Foreign currency transactions accounts are given in the notes of accounts. 
 
Commodity Hedging :- The realized gain or loss in respect of commodity hedging contracts, 
the principal period of which has expired during the year, is recognized in profit and loss 
account. In respect of contracts, that are outstanding as on date of Balance sheet are valued 
at prevailing market price and the resultant loss, if any, is provided. 



 

 
k) Borrowing Cost :- 

 
Borrowing Cost includes the interest, commitments charges on bank borrowings, 
amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings.  
 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of 
qualifying property, plants and equipments are capitalized as a part of cost of that 
property, plants and equipments. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 
is determined in accordance with the Accounting Standards – 16 “Borrowing Costs”. Other 
Borrowing Costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
 In accordance with the Accounting Standard – 16, exchange differences arising from 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as adjustments to interest 
costs are recognized as Borrowing Costs, and are capitalized as a part of cost of such 
property, plants and equipments if they are directly attributable to their acquisition or 
charged to the Consolidated Statement or Profit and Loss. 

 
l) Segment Reporting :- 

 
I. Business Segment : 

 
The company has disclosed business segment in notes on accounts as the primary 
segment taking into account the type of products, the differing risk return and the 
internal reporting system. The various segment identified by the company comprised. 

 
II. Geographical Segment: 

 
The Company has identified Geographical Segments as a secondary segment. 
 

m) Related Party Disclosure :- 
 

The Disclosures of Transaction with the related parties as defined in the related parties as 
defined in the Accounting Standard are given in notes of accounts. 
 

n) Accounting for Leases :- 
 

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that 
transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership to the 
Company is classified as a finance lease. 
 
The Company as a lessee: 
 
a) Operating Lease:- Rental payable under the operating lease are charged to the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a Straight line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. 
 
b) Finance Lease:- Finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease, at the 
lower of the fair value of the property or the present value of the minimum lease 



payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a 
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and 
the reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against the income 
over the period of the lease. 
 
The Company has not provided any of its assets on the basis of operating lease or finance 
lease to others. 
 

o) Cashflow:- 
 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals of past or 
future cash receipts and payments. The cash flows from regular operating, investing and 
financing activities of the company are segregated. 
 

p) Earnings Per Share :- 
 

The Company reports the basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) in accordance with 
Accounting Standard 20, “Earnings per Share”. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the Net 
Profit or Loss attributable to the Equity Shareholders for the year by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing 
the Net Profit or Loss attributable to the Equity Shareholders for the year by the weighted 
average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of 
all potential Equity Shares, except where the results are Anti - Dilutive. 

 
The weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for events such a Bonus Issue, Bonus elements in right issue, share splits, and reverse share 
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of Equity Shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources. 

 
q) Taxes on Income:- 

 
1. Current Tax: - 

Provision for current tax is made after taken into consideration benefits admissible 
under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 
2. Deferred Taxes: - 

  
Deferred Income Tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary difference 
at the balance sheet date between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amount for financial reporting purposes. 
 

I. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future 
against which this items can be utilized. 
 

II. Deferred Tax Assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the period when the assets is realized or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates  ( and the tax) that have been enacted or enacted 
subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

 



r) Discontinuing Operations :- 
 

During the year the company has not discontinued any of its operations. 
 

s) Provisions Contingent liabilities and contingent assets:- 
 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best 
estimate of the outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure is made as 
Contingent Liability. 
 
A disclosure for a Contingent Liability is also made when there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. 
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 
Possible obligation that arises from the past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation is reported 
as Contingent Liability. In the rare cases, when a liability cannot be measures reliable, it is 
classified as Contingent Liability. The Company does not recognize a Contingent Liability 
but disclosed its existence in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
t) Event after Reporting Date: - 

 
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of condition that 
existed at the end of reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the 
consolidated financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of 
material size or nature are only disclosed. 

 
All the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date up to the date of the approval of the 
consolidated financial statement of the Company by the board of directors on May 28, 
2024 have been considered, disclosed and adjusted, wherever applicable, as per the 
requirement of Indian Accounting Standards. 

 
.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements 
 

27. The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, and reclassified   wherever 
necessary. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an 
integral part of the current annual financial statements and are to be read in relation to 
the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current financial year. 

 
28.   Credit and Debit balances of unsecured loans, sundry creditors, sundry Debtors, loans 

and Advances are subject to confirmation and therefore the effect of the same on profit 
could not be ascertained. 

 
29.   Based on the information given by the Company about Creditor’s S.M.E. status, there is 

no amount due to such creditors outstanding for over 30 days as at 31st March 2024. 
 

30. The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or 
entity (is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall: 

 
(a) directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 
 

 
31. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign 

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) 

that the Company shall: 

 

directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

 

 

32. Statement of Management 
 

(i) The current assets, loans and advances are good and recoverable and are 
approximately of the values, if realized in the ordinary courses of business unless and 
to the extent stated otherwise in the Accounts. Provision for all known liabilities is 
adequate and not in excess of amount reasonably necessary. 

 

(ii) Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement read together 
with Notes to the accounts thereon, are drawn up so as to disclose the information 
required under the Companies Act, 2013 as well as give a true and fair view of the 
statement of affairs of the Company as at the end of the year and results of the 
Company for the year under review. 

 



33. Disclosure requirement under schedule III for the preparation of consolidated      
financial statement: 
            

Particulars Net Assets, i.e. Total Assets 
minus Liabilities 

Share of Profit or Loss 

As % of 
Consolidated 

Net Assets 

Amount (Rs. 
In Lakhs) 

As % of 
Consolidated 

Profit or 
Loss 

Amount (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Parent: 
 

42.42% 606.29 65.30% 582.21 

Shares of subsidiary held 
by the company At the 
year end 

12,00,000    

     
Minority Interest 57.58% 822.98 34.70% 309.39 
In Subsidiary     

 

  Note :  
 
 

 
34. Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are as under: - 

        Components of which are as under: - 
                                       (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 
Amount (Rs.) 

31-3-2024 

Net Differed Tax Asset (Liability) 18.08 
 

 

35. Earning Per Share 
 

                                                                                                                             (Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars Year Ended on 

31st March, 2024 
(Rs.) 

 
Profit / (Loss) after tax attributable to Equity 
Shareholders (A) 

 
Weighted Number of Equity Share outstanding 
During the year (B) (Unit in Lakhs.) 

 
Basic Earnings Per Share for each Share of Rs.10/-   
(A) / (B) 

 
891.60 

 

 

 

147.86 

 

 

6.03 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
34. Foreign Currency Transactions: - 

 
               Expenditure in Foreign Currency: -  

                                                                                                                  (Rs In lakhs) 
Particulars Year ended on 31.03.24 

(Rs.) 
Import Purchase  244.00 

Total 244.00 

 
               Earnings in Foreign Currency: - 
                                                                                                                                              (Rs In lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended on 31.03.24 
(Rs.) 

Export Sales 870.26 

Total 870.26 
 
 
     35. Related Parties Transaction: - 

 
As per Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Chartered Accountants of India, The Disclosures 
of Transaction with the related parties as defined in the related parties as defined in the 
Accounting Standard are given below: 

 
     (a) List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and     relationships: - 
 

Sr No Name of Related Parties Relationship 

1 Hitesh Dudhagara  
 
 
 
 

Key Managerial Person 
 

 Pragjibhai Dudhagara 
 Ronak Hitesh Dudhagara 
 Hiren Jamanbhai Patoriya 
 Dipesh Pravinchandra Pala 
 Kaushik K Dudhagara 
 CS Hetal Vachhani 
 Hitesh Dudhagara 
 Pragjibhai Dudhagara 
 Ronak Hitesh Dudhagara 
 Hiren Jamanbhai Patoriya 
 Dipesh Pravinchandra Pala 

2 1. Narmada Brass Industries 
2. Narmadeshwar Metal Private Limited 

Enterprise In Which 
Director Has Interested 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
     (b) Transaction during the current financial year with related parties: - 

                                                                                                                                         (Rs In Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Key 

Management 

Personnel 

Relatives of Key 

Management 

Personnel 

Grand Total 

Unsecured Loan Repaid - - - 

Unsecured Loan Accepted 997.44 - 997.44 

Salary Exp. 23.37 - 23.37 

Purchase of Goods  - 83.95 83.95 

Sale of Goods  - 38.96 38.96 

 
 36. Notes forming part of accounts in relation to Micro and small enterprise   

1. Based on information available with the company, on the status of the suppliers being 
Micro or small enterprises, on which the auditors have relied, the disclosure 
requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act,2013 with regard to the payments 
made/due to Micro and small Enterprises are given below: 
 

Sr.  
No. 

Particulars Year Ended on 31st March 2024 

  Principal Interest 

I Amount due as at the date of Balance 
sheet 

35.78 Nil 

Ii Amount paid beyond the appointed 
date during the year 

Nil Nil 

Iii Amount of interest due and payable  
for the period of delay in making 
payments of principal during the year 
beyond the appointed date 

Nil Nil 

Iv The amount of interest accrued and 
remaining unpaid as at the date of 
Balance sheet 

Nil Nil 

 

   

 

  
37. Loans or Advances in the nature of loans  
No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person 

 

38. Compliance with approved scheme of Arrangements. 

 

Company does not have made any arrangements in terms of section 230 to 237 of companies act 2013, and 

hence there is no deviation to be disclosed 

 

 

 

 

 

 



39. Ratios 

Ratio Numerator Denominator As at 31st March, 2024 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.23 

Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 1.03 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio EBITDA Total Borrowings  

   0.46 
 

 
Return on Equity Ratio 

Profit for the 
year 

Shareholder’s Equity 27% 

Net capital turnover ratio Sales 
Working capital (CA-
CL) 

0.14 

Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales 8.74% 

 


